G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited
P)E N E B EEER A T

Stock Code B 3 X 8% :657

ANNUAL REPORT %

S
‘\




H &%

Contents
Corporate Information 2.3
nEIER
Chairman’s Statement 4-7
FHEHRE
Management Discussion and Analysis 8-11
EEEN® AN
Corporate Governance Report 12-25
EERRE
Directors and Senior Management 26-29
EERENERE

Report of the Directors 30-44
ExgWmE

Independent Auditor’s Report 45-51
I8 SR BRI RS

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 52
maEankEMEEmKER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 53

REMBARRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity 54
BORREBDE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 55-56
FEHERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 57-131

REMBBHRRME

Financial Summary 132

MGEHE

2019/20 Annual Report 3R G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BREKEBERA T ‘]



NAEIER
Corporate Information

== DIRECTORS

HITES Executive Directors

ERENE (F/EFE FEAIFE) Cheng Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
2 = B3 Cheng Pak Ming, Judy

ISR Cheng Pak Man, Anita

HEE Cheng Pak Lai, Lily

BUkHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors

ZESHR Leung Tai Chiu

7B Law Toe Ming

BRE (R -_ZE-NAFRAT/N\BEHE)
HEB(RZZE-NENATNAEZRE)

NEME

Mark Yiu Tong, William (resigned on 18 June 2019)
Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew (appointed on 18 June 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY

2 = B Cheng Pak Ming, Judy

FEERIRIT PRINCIPAL BANKERS

EELESELCRITERAA The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
BEARITAER AR Hang Seng Bank Limited

EHRT(FE)BRAT Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

=B D AUDITOR

EEHEG TR EIFT RSM Hong Kong

BB EEED HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISERS

HRIE MM BT MinterEllison LLP

BRELERERD BERMUDA LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers Dill & Pearman

APPSR

Conyers Dill & Pearman

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda Bermuda

TESE I PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
BB Unit 108, 1st Floor

NEER N HFEEB East Ocean Centre

D038 B 8985k 98 Granville Road

REEFR L Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon

112 108F Hong Kong

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

2019/20 Annual Report &3k



FTERNBFETE

NAEIER
Corporate Information

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

MUFG Fung Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

ROBFEBERLDE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

ERTABLFELABRAA

&5
SRERBRI83F
A ML

1788 1712-1716 %

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Ak CORPORATE WEBSITE
WwWw.g-vision.com.hk www.g-vision.com.hk

IR A0 18 55 STOCK CODE

00657 00657

2019/20 Annual Report 3R

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BRI EREEERAR

3



4

FEWRE
Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), |
would like to present the annual report of G-Vision
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the financial year
ended 31 March 2020.

RESULTS
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The audited consolidated loss attributable to the
shareholders of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 was approximately HK$23.2 million. Loss per share
based on 1,946,314,108 ordinary shares in issue
amounted to HK$1.19.

R B DIVIDEND
EFCCRARATERREHE T —_FF The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment

A=t ALEFEZEARBEERE (=
T-NFE) -
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of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019: Nil).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$67.4 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$18.0
million or 21.0% from last year’s consolidated revenue
of approximately HK$85.4 million.

The Group’s restaurant business continued to be the
major contributor to the Group’s revenue for the year
under review. The decline in revenue of approximately
HK$5.0 million in the first half of the year was mainly
due to the restaurant renovation at Hover City Chiu
Chow Restaurant for three weeks in April 2019, the
Sino-American trade war and the widespread social
unrest in Hong Kong since the month of June 2019.
There had been a notable decline in the revenue from
the tourist business as well as the corporate patrons in
the midst of the social and economic turmoil.

2019/20 Annual Report %R



EHOIEE ()

FEHE
Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
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The significant drop in revenue of approximately
HK$13.0 million in the second half of the year was
mainly attributable to the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus (COVID-19) in Hong Kong in early February
2020. The Tsim Sha Tsui branch’s operation was
suspended for three weeks in February as a safety
measure. In order to minimise the risk of COVID-19
spreading in the community, the Hong Kong
government had tightened social distancing measures
and imposed regulations to restrict customers per table
and the distance between tables since March 2020. The
new regulations caused the Group’s revenue to slide by
approximately HK$11.0 million in the months of
February and March 2020.

The net loss for the year amounted to approximately
HK$23.2 million compared to last year’'s net loss of
approximately HK$12.8 million. The net loss position
worsened by approximately HK$10.4 in line with the
year-on-year decrease in revenue and the adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16, “Leases”
("HKFRS 16"). The decrease in revenue has resulted in
the loss of profit margin by approximately HK$11.9
million. The adoption of HKFRS 16 had resulted in
approximately HK$4.3 million more lease-related
expenses being accounted for under depreciation
charges and finance costs. The negative impacts on net
loss position from above were partially offset by the
decrease in staff costs of approximately HK$5.6 million.

Development and Construction Project in Australia

On 18 October 2019, GV Australia Pty Ltd (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
the agreement with a connected party in relation to the
development and construction of a low-rise apartment
block on the land comprising 26 apartments and certain
communal facilities situated in Camden, Sydney, New
South Wales, Australia. Details of the arrangement were
set out in the announcement dated 18 October 2019
and the circular dated 12 November 2019 issued by the
Company. The resolution in relation to the above
transaction as set out in the notice of the special general
meeting was duly passed by the independent
shareholders, by way of poll, at the special general
meeting held on 29 November 2019.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
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The construction commenced following the appointment
of HT Building Pty Ltd (“HT Building”) as the constructor
in March 2020. Rider Lovett Bucknall RLB Sydney, a
reputable quantity surveyor firm, will act as the certified
quantity surveyor for the project. A local project team
was also set up to oversee and monitor the construction
progress. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the
lockdown of Sydney’s custom border, the supply of
materials from overseas may be affected causing a slight
delay in the construction progress. The Group will
closely monitor the situation and will make necessary
announcement should there be a material delay in the
future.

PROSPECTS
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

The restaurant business will continue to be the core
business of the Group, but with the COVID-19 pandemic
still ongoing and the various social-distancing
regulations still in place, the outlook for the food and
beverage industry in Hong Kong will be difficult. Amid
the challenging operating environment, the Group will
adopt a more cautious approach in committing further
capital expenditure and will implement various measures
to mitigate the loss during this difficult time such as
increasing promotion and discount to boost dine-in and
takeaway business, seeking rental concession from
landlords and suspending the hiring of full-time and
temporary workers. The Group is also expected to
receive approximately HK$5 million subsidies from the
Hong Kong Government’'s Anti-epidemic Fund at
different phases in the next financial year.

The Group will continue to review and revise its business
strategies from time to time with the aim to better
position itself to meet the challenges ahead and to
capture any new investment opportunities as they arise.
The commencement of the development and
construction business in Australia in the second half of
the financial year will mark a new era for the Group. It
is considered as a suitable opportunity for the Group to
expand its business activities and diversify risks with an
aim to improve the returns for its shareholders.

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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0S & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

KAZBHHAEBR EEEANETHESF I would like to express my gratitude to the management

NEAREBEREZE I NREEBRBUA and staff members of the Group for their dedication and

ROHME - invaluable efforts and contributions to the Group during
the year.

B Cheng Hop Fai

BEE Chairman

EH —E-_TENA=-+=H Hong Kong, 22 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$67.4 million,
representing a decrease of 21.0% from previous year's
revenue of approximately HK$85.4 million.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$23.2 million for the year under review compared to
a net loss of approximately HK$12.8 million for the
previous year. The year-on-year drop in revenue has
resulted in the loss of profit margin by approximately
HK$11.9 million.

Under HKFRS16, the Group is required to capitalise all
leases previously classified as operating leases under
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 17, “Leases” (“HKAS
17") into right-of-use assets, other than those
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets which
are exempt. The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the lease term
(including the option period) discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rate and is subsequently
adjusted for interest, lease payments and the impact
from any lease modification. As at 31 March 2020, the
carrying value of the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$37.7 million
and HK$40.9 million respectively.

Upon the application of HKFRS 16, the lease payments
previously accounted for as operating lease rentals and
staff quarter costs are now being accounted for as
depreciation on right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$16.1 million and interest on lease liabilities of
approximately HK$4.3 million and are presented in the
consolidated financial statement as depreciation and
finance costs respectively. Under HKFRS 16, the total of
the depreciation and finance costs in relation to the
leases amounted to approximately HK$20.4 million for
the year ended 31 March 2020 and were approximately
HK$4.3 million higher than the total of the lease rental
and staff quarter costs if it had not been accounted for
under HKFRS 16.

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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Impairment assessment was performed on the Group's
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
for its restaurant operations resulted in a total
impairment costs of approximately HK$1.7 million being
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2020.

On 23 October 2017, 30,000,000 share options were
granted to the Group’s directors. The fair value of the
share options amounted to approximately HK$2.9
million, of which approximately HK$0.3 million was
recognised as share-based payments staff expenses for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$1.0 million) in
accordance with the vesting conditions of the share
options granted.

Total staff costs reduced by approximately HK$5.6
million compared to previous year. Excluding the impacts
from the reclassification of approximately HK$0.9 million
staff quarter costs to depreciation and finance costs; the
year-on-year decrease in share-based payments staff
expenses of approximately HK$0.7 million and the
additional long service leave provision of approximately
HK$0.3 million, the actual costs saving was mainly due
to a decrease in some turnover-based remuneration,
increasing no pay leave and the reduction in temporary
workers.

There were also approximately HK$0.7 million decrease
in utility charges and approximately HK$0.2 million
decrease in credit card commission charges.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
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Revenue from the first half of the financial year was
adversely affected by the social unrest and economic
downturn in Hong Kong. With the easing of the protest
situation towards the end of 2019, the Group’s revenue
gradually improved over the Christmas and the Chinese
New Year periods. However, since the first locally
transmitted case of COVID-19 was confirmed in Hong
Kong in early February 2020 and more people were
encouraged to stay at home and practice social
distancing, the revenue for the Group’s restaurants
plummeted to an unprecedented low. For health and
safety measures for the Group's staff and restaurant
patrons, the Tsim Sha Tsui branch was closed for three
weeks in February 2020. Since March 2020, the
restaurants had to comply with social distancing
regulations including limiting the number of diners to
four per table, with each table spaced 1.5 metres apart.
This posed a further impact on the restaurant operation
and resulted in approximately 70% drop from revenues
under normal operation.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
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The Group’s cash and bank balances (including pledged
bank deposits and short-term bank deposits) amounted
to approximately HK$57.3 million as at 31 March 2020.
As the Group had no bank borrowings, the Group’s
gearing ratio was zero as at 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2019.

With the cash generated from the Group’s operations in
its ordinary course of business and the existing unutilised
banking and credit facilities, the directors consider that
the Group has sufficient working capital for its
operations.

HNEE BE 5 & P FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE
BERAEBR 2 KRIDHEE - KEBUKIRS® Most of the Group's sales, purchases, cash and bank
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through certain bank deposits which are denominated in
Australian dollar, United States dollar and Renminbi. The
management would closely monitor such risk and would
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group had approximately 126
staff. Total staff costs including directors’ emoluments
amounted to approximately HK$30.2 million (31 March
2019: HK$35.8 million) for the year under review.

Review of the employees’ remuneration packages is
normally conducted annually and as required from time
to time. The salary and benefit levels of the Group's
employees are competitive and individual performance is
rewarded through the Group’s bonus scheme. Other
benefits including medical coverage and mandatory
provident fund scheme are also provided to employees.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
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The Group strives to generate positive return to preserve
values of shareholders through its sustainable business
development. For the Group’s traditional business, the
Group would try to seek growth and higher returns by
offering more innovative products or services to
customers, to implement more stringent cost control and
to apply and manage resources as effectively as possible.
In order to further enhance the value of the Group and
to achieve higher returns to the shareholders, the longer
term approach is to expand the income source through
business diversification. The aim is to maximise the
overall returns to shareholders in the long run by
identifying and selecting new business opportunities
which are of great potential and include them in the
Group's existing business portfolio.

OUTLOOK
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The restaurant business will continue to serve as our
core operation. However, the operating environment for
the Group’s restaurant operation still remains
challenging. The Group will continue to monitor its
operating costs cautiously given the unstable outlook.
The Group reviews and revises its business strategies on
a regular basis with the aim to better position itself to
meet the challenges ahead and to capitalise any future
acquisition and strategic investment opportunities as
they arise. The diversification into the development and
construction industry in Australia will provide the Group
an ample opportunity to acquire an additional source of
income and a positive return to the Group and its
shareholders.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board acknowledges the importance and benefits of
good corporate governance and strives to manage the
Company and the business in accordance with the
guidelines of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) for effective corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, fairness, integrity
and accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

|
» | e

|

15
A RMBE R PT EmRA ([ LM R
FER TP E 2 BEERTRI([R %
SADEREAEREARTA - REE
TECTF-_A=+—HBUEFEAR AR
AR AT REEA TR Z ST RIERSC - ST
AMEXA2 1R (BB EE RITHAEE 2 A
ok TRMEX A4 G (BEIEATT
EX(FTES]) 2REHR) KAl
FX D14 IR (BERAESMZEER) RN -

1l J

s

N

~
o>

SFAMEXD.1.MEETBR - ETETAEAR
EEMREERZTELVNHEETZIERK
MRl AR ERTESABERNZME
Z-BE ARAMBESTHFTELZERH
ARAEMERH 2 ([EE &I RA
EAEEEeRH 2 [EEEmIRIBY
FRITEREBIUNBTEEARRES
CHBRERET -BEERA WERHFAETH
EXD1AlgZz BIZ -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own corporate
governance code. The Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2020 except for code provision A.2.1 in
respect of the role separation of the chairman and the
chief executive; code provision A.4.1 in respect of the
service term of non-executive directors (“NEDs”) and
code provision D.1.4 in respect of the letters of
appointment for directors.

Code provision D.1.4 sets out that issuers should have
formal letters of appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The
Company did not have formal letters of appointment for
certain directors. All of the directors of the Company
are, however, required to refer to the guidelines set out
in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the
Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and
“Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in
performing their duties and responsibilities as directors
of the Company. In the opinion of the directors, this
meets the objective of the code provision D.1.4.

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code"”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. Following specific enquiry
by the Company, all the directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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The Board currently comprises four executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors
("INEDs"):

Executive Directors

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LEUNG Tai Chiu

LAW Toe Ming

MARK Yiu Tong, William (resigned on 18 June 2019)
HUNG Chi Yuen Andrew (appointed on 18 June 2019)

With effect from 18 June 2019, Mr. Mark Yiu Tong,
William resigned and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew was
appointed as an INED.

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita
and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily are sisters and are daughters
of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, the chairman and managing
director. Save as aforesaid, the Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material relationship
with each other.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were six
Board meetings, one general meeting and one special
general meeting held. Individual attendance of each of
the Board members is as follows:

H R
Attendance

45 5l

Exg BRAE BRAE

Special

Board General General

EEns Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting

#A51E CHENG Hop Fai 4/6 11 11

LS CHENG Pak Ming, Judy 4/6 1/1 1/1

B H & CHENG Pak Man, Anita 4/6 1/1 1/1

EHE CHENG Pak Lai, Lily 4/6 1/1 1/1

REgiE LEUNG Tai Chiu 6/6 1/1 1/1

ZEIER LAW Toe Ming 5/6 11 0/1
ERE (W-Z2—H%  MARK Yiu Tong, William

NATN\BEE) (resigned on 18 June 2019) 2/6 N/A N/A
HER (RZE—NEF HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew

NATNHEZT) (appointed on 18 June 2019) 4/6 11 11
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HEBERAmAREXN -EFEHRA
FEERTBRZRTEEERAR -
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The members of the Board are experienced individuals
having a mix of core competencies in areas of
accounting and finance, business management, industry
knowledge and marketing strategies. The directors are
collectively responsible for formulating and
implementing the Group’s strategies and policies,
monitoring the performance of the Group and reviewing
the corporate governance practices. The mix of
professional skills and experience of the INEDs is an
important element in the proper functioning of the
Board. Their participation in Board and committee
meetings brings independent judgment and helps to
ensure that adequate checks and balances are provided
and that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. Directors have full access to appropriate
business documents and information about the Group
on a timely basis. The Directors can also obtain
independent professional advice at the Group’s expense
if they require it. The Board delegates the day-to-day
operation and administration to the management.

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
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The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules in maintaining at all times sufficient
number of INEDs on the Board including an INED with
professional accounting and financial qualifications. The
Company has complied with rule 3.10A since 1
December 2012 and has INEDs representing at least
one-third of the Board. The Company considers all of
the INEDs are independent and has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

EENERERARERBHEE 2G5 #
A SRR MRS REIEE & QP RBR A
SEMBRRc EBHBRR - REFS
Pl W8 B ERMERTHABRZ EHHIE
MECARARZFHERERNTIRESL
§t o NARMEREZBEBEBERERS
BEZEBH-

J2\ B 5 3 B R B 5 42

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group that
give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position and are in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and statutory rules and guidelines.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue on a
going concern basis. The Company has also received a
statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

EEgAREBREMTARIL  #FLE
FRREELAREERS BB RE
EEMZAIEMEREENE  EERALY
K -BEZRE ZRRERZETRH
BIBRE - L RGRETE EEIEMIEBR
REEEXREBER AR MBPHLEEKR
$H R Bt SR B R R BB IR (A IR 1 FEAB HH 4R

2K o

ag

2019/20 Annual Report %

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance and review of the risk
management and internal control systems that provide
reasonable assurance on the reliability and integrity of
financial and operational information, effective and
efficient operations, safeguarding of assets and
compliance with laws and regulations. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

15



16

Corporate Governance Report

[,

B IPE N ZPEEIE (8

~

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)
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The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are based on a set of policies, rules and
guidelines as outlined in the Group’s internal control
manual and governed by the following types of control
principles:

a. Organisation — to have clearly defined line of
responsibility and delegation

b. Segregation of duties — to reduce risk of intentional
manipulation or error

c.  Physical Control — to restrict unauthorized access to
all kinds of assets

d. Authorisation and Approval — to have clearly
defined limits for authorizations

e. Arithmetical and Accounting - to ensure accuracy of
transactional records

f.  Personnel — to have qualified staff to perform
day-to-day duties

g. Supervision — to observe and closely monitor, to
identify and report on control weaknesses

h. Management - to maintain overall controls; to
manage and mitigate significant risks and to
highlight significant matters to the Board and the
audit committee

The Company has adopted the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission as its own guidelines in handling
and dissemination of inside information. Unauthorized
use of confidential information is strictly prohibited.

The Board through the executive management team and
the audit committee had conducted an annual review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and considered that the systems in place are
adequate and effective.

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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Code provision A.2.1 sets out that the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.
Currently, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai assumes the role of both
the chairman and the managing director (equivalent to
the role of a chief executive) of the Company. The Board
considers that such arrangement will not result in undue
concentration of power and is, at this stage, conducive
to the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group’s strategies thus allowing the Group to develop
its business more effectively.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that NEDs should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Some INEDs are not appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1.
However, as all the INEDs are subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meetings of the Company
at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws, in the opinion of the directors, this
meets the objective of the code provision A.4.1.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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BRI DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

SFAMEXAGSIEEIE EEH AL HEEE Code provision A.6.5 stipulates that all directors should
BHEHERR UBRERETESZ2HHN participate in continuous professional development to
HeENBREENRAKSEHEETS 2 F develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure

EER - ARRBEWAENESTREEZE that their contribution to the Board remains informed
TEF-A=+—HLEFEAZEIE and relevant. The Company had received from each of
ol 2B EWMT the directors a record of training they received during

the year ended 31 March 2020. A summary of such
training is listed as follows:

18

EAIER
Type of
EEns Name of Director training
WITES Executive Director
B CHENG Hop Fai A, B
ZfH BA CHENG Pak Ming, Judy A, B
BB CHENG Pak Man, Anita A, B
EHE CHENG Pak Lai, Lily A, B
BYENITES Independent Non-Executive Director
BB LEUNG Tai Chiu A, B
# 8 H LAW Toe Ming A, B
ERE (R=ZZT—NF MARK Yiu Tong, William
NATN\BEE) (resigned on 18 June 2019) A, B
HER (RZZE—NE HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew
NATNHEZT) (appointed on 18 June 2019) A, B
A HESIRER ST E - &3 TED A: Attending training courses and/or seminars, conferences,
oY 5w 18 workshops or forums

B: HMEBWLE ALAEBREFBRIEZT
YR EFHER

B:  Reading journals and updates relevant to the Company’s

business or directors’ duties and responsibilities

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHEREBAERA A 2019/20 Annual Report &3k
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 14 July 2005. The principal function of the
remuneration committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of executive
directors, NEDs and senior management. The terms of
reference of the remuneration committee adopted on 23
March 2012 are consistent with the code provisions set
out in the Code. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
the remuneration committee comprised the three INEDs,
namely, Mr. Law Toe Ming (chairman), Mr. Leung Tai
Chiu, Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William (resigned on 18 June
2019) and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew (appointed on
18 June 2019). During the year ended 31 March 2020,
the remuneration committee held one meeting to review
and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the directors with reference
to the level of responsibilities of the individual director,
the scope of operation of the Group as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Individual attendance of
each remuneration committee member is as follows:

Name of H fE R

FHMEEERERA remuneration committee member Attendance

EER (£E) LAW Toe Ming (Chairman) 1/1

RS LEUNG Tai Chiu 11
HRe (RZT—NF MARK Yiu Tong, William

NATN\HEE) (resigned on 18 June 2019) 1/1
HER (RZZE—NF HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew

NATN\BEZT) (appointed on 18 June 2019) N/A

2019/20 Annual Report %
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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The Company established a nomination committee on
23 March 2012. The principal function of the
nomination committee is to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board at least annually
with reference to the business needs and development
of the Company and make recommendations to the
Board on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy. The
nomination committee has a policy concerning the
diversity of Board members (the “Policy”). Pursuant to
the Policy, in reviewing the Board's diversity, the Board
will consider including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. New directors, being individuals who are suitably
qualified and expected to make a positive contribution
to the performance of the Board and having regards to
the criteria stated in the Policy, will be identified and
submitted to the Board or shareholders for approval
either to fill vacancies on the Board or to be appointed
as additional directors. The terms of reference of the
nomination committee are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2020, the nomination committee comprised
the chairman and an executive director, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, who acts as the chairman of the nomination
committee and the two INEDs, namely, Mr. Law Toe
Ming, Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William (resigned on 18 June
2019) and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew (appointed on
18 June 2019) as members. During the year ended 31
March 2020, the nomination committee held one
meeting to review the composition and diversity of the
Board as well as to assess the independence of the INED
who offered himself for re-election at the annual general
meeting. Since the Board is composed of members
having a mix of core competencies in areas of
accounting and finance, business management, industry
knowledge and marketing strategies, the nomination
committee considered the Board possessed a diversity of
perspectives which is up to the standard of the Code
and was appropriate to the Group’s requirements.
Individual attendance of each of the nomination
committee members is as follows:

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Name of HE =R
REZEERERS nomination committee member Attendance
BerE (F/) CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman) 11
ZEBHA LAW Toe Ming 11
ERE (RZT—NF MARK Yiu Tong, William
NATNABEHT) (resigned on 18 June 2019) 1/1
HER (RZZE—NF HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew
NATNHEZT) (appointed on 18 June 2019) N/A
BEREER AUDIT COMMITTEE
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The Company has established an audit committee since
1999. The primary functions of the audit committee
include:

(@) To make recommendations on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of auditor and to
consider the terms of such appointments;

(b) To review and monitor the auditor’s independence;
to develop and implement policies on the
engagement of auditor for non-audit services;

(c) To monitor the integrity of the financial statements,
annual and interim reports and the auditor’s report;
to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices and to ensure that the
information presents a true and fair assessment of
the Group’s financial position;

(d) To review the Group’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems; to ensure
management has fulfilled its duty to have effective
systems and to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

(e) To consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings; and

(f) To review the auditor’'s management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to management, and
management’s response.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
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The terms of reference of the audit committee adopted
on 23 March 2012 are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2020, the audit committee comprised three
INEDs, namely, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu as chairman and
Mr. Law Toe Ming, Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William
(resigned on 18 June 2019) and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen,
Andrew (appointed on 18 June 2019) as members.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the audit
committee held two meetings and has reviewed with
senior management and the auditor their respective
audit findings, the interim and annual financial
statements and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The audit committee
recommended the Board to adopt the interim and
annual reports for 2019/20. Individual attendance of
each member of the audit committee is as follows:

Name of HE=R

EREEEREH B audit committee member Attendance
REER (FE) LEUNG Tai Chiu (Chairman) 2/2
B LAW Toe Ming 172
ERE (RZZ—NF MARK Yiu Tong, William

NATNA\BHEHT) (resigned on 18 June 2019) 1/1
HEER (RZE—NF HUNG Chi, Andrew

NATN\BEZTE) (appointed on 18 June 2019) 11
2R 2 B & AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

HE T - ZEF=-_A=+—HILFHEHF
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The remuneration payable in respect of the year ended
31 March 2020 for audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor, RSM
Hong Kong, is as follows:

A FHETTE

Amount in HKD'000

ZEER Audit Fees 480
IZEER (ETEZAKREBEHNX Non-Audit Fees (principally for accounts

HmERBE s ER) review and other reporting services) 184

664

SR E BB E The statement made by the auditor in respect of their

THH 2 BHEE HER
REFR 7 EASEST1HE o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 45 to 51 of
this annual report.
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1> EESLR AL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
EECRRERETZAESABGE M The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
- governance duties as set out below:-

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and its disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s polices and
practices on corporate governance practices and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
including compliance with the Code for the year ended
31 March 2020.

COMPANY SECRETARY
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Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, an executive director of the
Company, has been the company secretary of the
Company since 17 February 2006. Ms. Cheng complied
with the qualification and training requirements under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2020.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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Shareholders are encouraged to maintain direct
communication with the Company. Shareholders who
have any questions for the Board may write directly to
the company secretary at the Company’'s Hong Kong
principal place of business, Unit 108, 1st Floor, East
Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, or send emails to info@g-vision.com.hk. The
company secretary will direct the questions to the Board.

Any questions regarding the shareholdings of the
shareholders can be addressed directly to the Company’s
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if
necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairman of
Board committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will attend
annual general meetings to answer shareholders’
questions.
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Shareholders’ Meetings (Continued)

Should shareholders wish to call a special general
meeting, it must be convened according to the
Company’s Bye-laws. In summary:

(a) Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company can, in writing to
the Board or the company secretary, request a
special general meeting to be called by the Board to
transact any business specified in such request.

(b) The signed written request, which should specify
the purpose of the meeting, should be delivered to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The meeting will be held within two months
after receipt of the request. If the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting within
twenty-one days after receiving the request, the
shareholders themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

BEXH
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2019/20 Annual Report %

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change to the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws
("Constitutional Documents”) during the year ended 31
March 2020. A latest version of the Constitutional
Documents can be downloaded from the websites of the
Company or the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, aged 76, appointed as a director
on 12 June 1992, is the chairman and managing director
of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheng is one
of the founders of the Group and has over 30 years’
experience in the restaurant business. He has been
instrumental in the formulation and implementation of
the business policies of the Group and is responsible for
the general management and strategic planning of the
Group. Mr. Cheng is also a director of Golden Toy
Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) and Kong Fai
International Limited (“Kong Fai”) which own
approximately 8.88% and 65.62%, respectively, of the
issued shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng is the father
of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man,
Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are all executive
directors of the Company.

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, aged 49, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 25
September 1992. She was also appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 17 February
2006. Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai
and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor degree in
Economics from the University of Sydney and a Master
of Commerce degree from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney. She is a Certified Practising Accountant
of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
responsible for the financial and company secretarial
functions of the Group.
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Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita, aged 48, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 30
September 2004. Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng
Hop Fai and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney and a Master of Applied Finance degree
from Macquarie University, Sydney. She is a Certified
Practising Accountant of CPA Australia and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cheng has worked in the
investment banking and accounting fields in Hong Kong
for over 5 years. She is responsible for the business
development, marketing and strategic planning
functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, aged 47, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 1 April 2011.
Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a
sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita. She joined the Group in 2006. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for the administration, financial and strategic
planning functions of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Cheng had extensive finance and accounting
experiences in multinational audit firm, investment bank
and a renowned chemical company. She holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
New South Wales, Sydney and is a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia.
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Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, aged 74, was appointed as an
INED on 11 August 2011. He is the chairman of the
audit committee of the Company and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Leung
graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1969.
Mr. Leung is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 30 years
of experience in accounting and auditing sectors and
had been an audit partner in international renowned
accounting firms for 20 years. In 2005, Mr. Leung
retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr. Leung was
the president of Lions Club of Victoria in 1986 and 1998
and a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995 to 1997. He is
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
is an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited, EVA Precision Industrial
Holdings Limited and Kingboard Chemical Holding
Limited, all of which are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Law Toe Ming, aged 78, was appointed as an INED
on 1 December 1994. He is the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of the audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Law has over 39 years' experience in
business management. He is a director of Texful Textile
Limited.

Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William, aged 84, was appointed
as a NED on 25 September 1992. He was re-designated
as an INED with effect from 16 September 2004.
Following his resignation as an INED on 18 June 2019,
he ceased to be a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee. Mr. Mark is a renowned food critic and
a regular contributor to many newspapers and
magazines in Hong Kong and overseas. He writes under
the pen name of “MEE"” in Chinese newspapers and
magazines and is the author of several books on Chinese
cookery. He holds many awards in the food industry.
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Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew, aged 51, was appointed
as an INED and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee on 18 June 2019. He is currently the
director of Norton Rowland CPA Limited. He received his
professional training in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu during
the period from 1991 to 1993 and had worked in UBS
Investment Bank as business unit controller for seven
years. Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts (Hons)
in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a Master's Degree in Applied Finance
from University of Western Sydney. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant, a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Hung is currently an independent
non-executive director of FDG Kinetic Limited (stock
code: 378) and AKM Industrial Company Limited (stock
code: 1639), all of which are listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
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The Company is an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the operation of
restaurants in Hong Kong which specialise in Chiu Chow
Cuisine.

RESULTS
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 52 of
this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
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A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year as required by schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong) including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and a discussion of the
Group’s likely future development can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. Those discussions form part of this report of
the directors. The environmental, social and governance
report of the Company to be published within 3 months
after the publication of this annual report shall also form
part of the business review.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
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During the year under review, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS
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The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business
goals. During the year under review, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and
its employees, customers or suppliers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
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The aggregate purchases attributable to the largest
supplier and five largest suppliers of the Group were
18% and 45%, respectively, of the Group’s purchases
for the year.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group was less than 30% of the
Group's revenue for the year.

None of the directors, their respective close associates
nor any shareholder, (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital), has an interest in any of the five largest
suppliers of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE
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The Company is committed to the sustainable
development of the environment and the society. The
Group has endeavoured to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopted effective environmental practices to ensure the
business meet the required standards and ethics in
respect of environmental protection.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Details of the movement of property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
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During the year under review, charitable donations of
HK$6,000 were made by the Group (2019: HK$20,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
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HARMIFE25 ©
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Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS
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The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent non-executive directors:

LEUNG Tai Chiu

LAW Toe Ming

MARK Yiu Tong, William (resigned on 18 June 2019)
HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew (appointed on 18 June 2019)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’'s
Bye-laws, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita, Ms. Cheng Pak
Lai, Lily and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election has a
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

%
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As at 31 March 2020, the interests of the directors and
the chief executive and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10

to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions

(1) RARAISKREABIAEBLTEBR (1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of

A

EEHA

Name of director

He¥E
Cheng Hop Fai

HEE
Cheng Hop Fai

LS EE
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy

B 8
Cheng Pak Man, Anita

HAE
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily

LS
Law Toe Ming
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the Company:

B RERMEE
Capacity and
nature of interest

BEmEAA

Beneficial owner

EEXmA (Hita)

Beneficiary of trusts (note a)

SrtXmA (Hfita)

Beneficiary of trusts (note a)

ErEXEA (Hita)

Beneficiary of trusts (note a)

EFEXEA (Hita)

Beneficiary of trusts (note a)

TEH| DR S

(note b)

(Ktith)

Interest of controlled corporation

BEE®T
EZBEREHE
Number of
issued ordinary
shares held

6,900,000

1,450,037,841

1,450,037,841

1,450,037,841

1,450,037,841

2,000,000

EARFE BT
BREZBNB DL
Approximate
percentage of

the issued

share capital

of the Company

0.35%

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%

0.10%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

#E ()
(1) RARAEREBEINELEEBRZ
e ()

e

(@) Golden Toy Investments Limited
(I Golden Toyl) & Kong Fai
International Limited ([Kong Fail) % Bl
BAARNRAZ172,869,7800% A% {5 (sk
8.88% M ) }1,277,168,0611% i {3
(2£65.62% %) ° Golden Toy & Kong
Fai VEAMIEZRETLZERE  ZW
HEAZIBARBAEBEE 2 KK
RE BRESEEAE BERALLT
HEHG Rzt RBEBALL -

(b) 38 B 5% & P Jubilee Trade Holdings
Limited ([Jubilee |) ¥ B Z # &= M # %
AH2,000,0000F R A RER ©

2) BRIEZLAE

PiIN/N ?¢£H+Eﬁﬁ
ZHX%%%'JK’SL?‘“HX?J& BAR
MR 8 (TR ERTEI)) - %8B
Rt E AR E T _FEFRAN
BestE8lZHFBEHREEMBHRE
Pi5E28 o

Long positions (Continued)

(1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company: (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Golden Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) and
Kong Fai International Limited (“Kong Fai”) held
172,869,780 shares (or 8.88% interest) and
1,277,168,061 shares (or 65.62% interest) of the
Company, respectively. Golden Toy and Kong Fai are
wholly-owned by two discretionary trusts of which
family members of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, including
Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy,
Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily

are discretionary objects.

(b)  Mr. Law Toe Ming is deemed to be interested in the
2,000,000 shares held by Jubilee Trade Holdings Limited

("Jubilee™) by virtue of his interest in Jubilee.

(2) Long positions in share options:

The Company by shareholders’ resolutions passed at
the special general meeting held on 10 May 2010
has adopted a share option scheme, which was
valid and effective until 8 May 2020 (the "“Option
Scheme”). Particulars of the Option Scheme are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EENRGD HERORESF 2E DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
= (48) UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

#e (&) Long positions (Continued)

(2) BREZITE  (B) (2) Long positions in share options: (Continued)
HEr—_ZE-_EFE=HA=+—HItF Details of movements in the share options granted
B RBEBRESSRTFES 2EBR to the directors under the Option Scheme for the
RS EHFBENET year ended 31 March 2020 are set out below:

BREYE
Number of share options
R=B-0% REREE  H-Z-%%
mA-A g8t =A=t-A
SRTFEE WATE Expired/ WARITE
Exercise  Outstanding granted  Outstanding
gz REAH il price as at during as at
Director Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.4.2019 the year 31.3.2020
=Y “F5-+5+f-tzA  Z-tFtA-tzhHZ HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
“ECRETACTCA
Cheng Hop Fai 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
gRmH “E+EHACTIR CEtEtA-TIRE HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Sl iy gl
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
gad B oo = B S o 2 0 B e = ) HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
“ECRETA-TCA
Cheng Pak Man, Anita 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
g0k “F5-+5+f-tzA  Z-tFtA-tzhHZ HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
“ECRETACTCA
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
28 “E+EHACTIR CE4EtA-TIRE HK$0.177 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
“ECRETACTCA
Leung Tai Chiu 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
EEH B oo = B S o 2 0 B e = ) HK$0.177 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
“ECRETA-TCA
Law Toe Ming 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
Rz “F5-+5+f-tzA  Z-tFtA-tzhHZ HK$0.177 2,000,000¢ - 2,000,000¢
“ECRETACTCA
Mark Yiu Tong, William ~ 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
30,000,000 - 30,000,000
HieE - Note:
(@) EREEANR-_Z—HLESNA+NHE (@ Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William resigned as an INED and
BEECBEIIENTESTEA  TEF redesignated as consultant effective from 18 June 2019.
Z%EE i e
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= (%)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

#R (&)
2) BEEZHR : (B)

R EXHIEEN R_F_TF=
A=1t—H BEARRAEERER
THRABEAREBRES MHEKERMFE
XVEP 7 %87 BRI EAE MR /R
ARABREFEFRBEEE BN - 8
BB ESFHEE T E RN
KR ()AREREZF R EE RPIFEXV
BETR8D B M MG AN R T R
B S0 ARBES KRB EKRDE
352 MBAZ G 2 B R
H(OARFEFETAMAE ARA R
5 P e

BARORES 2L B

Long positions (Continued)
(2) Long positions in share options: (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none
of the directors and the chief executive of the
Company was, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, taken to be interested or deemed to
have any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations which (a)
would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or (b) which were required to
be entered into the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (c) which
were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

R EXPIRBEZBRERAEIN  RAF
EERKEA - AREREAEANEB QA
SR AR R EAEAME QRS ER L E
A2 BEARREFAEBARNR A
SRR E MR A BB 2 B D sl & 75 M e o

Other than the options disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or holding company, or any subsidiary of its holding
company, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHEREBAERA A 2019/20 Annual Report &3k
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

BRARAETEFRNEXRE 2 ERSI > R
T_ZEF=ZA=1T—H ARFAREES
M EIRPIEBHRFEZETERRER
M#ER - THALEHNGEARR  ERAK
RAIDBITRAP 2 AR NORR - I
ARBEESF MR E RO EXVEE2K3D
BB 1F AR ER

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors, as at 31 March 2020, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO indicated that the
following persons had notified the Company of interests
or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

He Long positions
RAREREBENB T LB Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company:
EARDRE BT
BRAZBNBE DL
ez e BT Approximate
EBREE percentage of
S RESNEE Number of the issued
£ Capacity and issued ordinary share capital
Name nature of interest shares held  of the Company
BEREAA 172,869,780 ©@ 8.88%
Golden Toy Beneficial owner
EREEA 1,277,168,061 @ 65.62%
Kong Fai Beneficial owner
EREXFA 1,450,037,841 @ 74.50%
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited Trustee of trusts
REHeE s Ea 1,450,037,841 ® 74.50%
Alpadis Group Holding SA Interest of controlled corporation
REHIGEZER 1,450,037,841 © 74.50%
Alain Esseiva Interest of controlled corporation
2019/20 Annual Report 3R G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BREKEBERA T
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FERR (&) SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
He(E) Long positions (Continued)
Bt - Notes:

(a)

REBEFFRAEGRD  ERmELRETE
{iz (# B Golden Toyf&Kong FaiZ 100%7# 25 )
2Z %A 0 Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited## 48 &
A Golden ToyFKong Faiffi & £ EwiEAR 2
H8[R11,450,037,84 1B R B ik o

Alpadis Group Holding SA g2 AEEE
H% 53 A 4 AR IR B A R B 160 B4R R
Alpadis Trust (HK) LimitediF & 2 # 25 M 17 4%
11,450,037, 841 IR AR 15 G B 25

Alain Esseiva 1718 2 & A = 2 A% 5 8 45
AR IR 75 5 & HAE 160 B 18 7 Alpadis Group
Holding SA B Z #Emm® /R BN
1,450,037, 841 IR f& 1 P HE B = -

B EXEBEEIN  REEMRM R-F
—EF=ZA=+—RH UEEAEMAL
KA R Rz B fn SR BE R 1D 7 2 (E A #E 25
FKRR AT ARNRAEALRIEEF R
HEGRIIE336RTFEZECMA -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(a)

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited is deemed under the SFO to have
an interest in the same 1,450,037,841 shares, in aggregate,
beneficially owned by Golden Toy and Kong Fai by virtue of it
being the trustee of two discretionary trusts which own
100% of the shares of Golden Toy and Kong Fai.

The corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by Alpadis
Group Holding SA indicated that it is deemed to be interested
in the 1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by virtue of its
interest held in Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited.

The individual substantial shareholder notice filed by Alain
Esseiva indicated that he is deemed to be interested in the
1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by virtue of his interests
held in Alpadis Group Holding SA.

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 March 2020, had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were required to be entered
into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

$ BB WE| BB IENTTE SRR

THES FMARAIEI 3G E BT R
LB FERR - NARREMBBILIEH
TEEHRBIL -

EENEHNRBERSPZ

ﬁ:ﬁ
Bk

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all of the INEDs are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) REEH-_EE_FHANBHEAR
BHERAER AR (BRI ETFTWE
EAKEAEBBIBER - AQRHE
EREEAAOLEE ARSI E2R
ERzmBHES -

RZEBE—+EMWA-+/N\B K&EH
HEMEBEEZLLAEAY HHH-Z
—+tFRA—HEE-_ZE-_TFNA
=+ B1-AB =4 A7360,000%
(T BEEZm BEENARE )
T E &% 51,080,000/ 7T c KR
HEREE AR 2R —RHBLE
EWETE QA BXFITTERRM
ERARR_Z—tFEWMA-+N\HR
FrigsemBEie B@ALHEZFHE
BEHRARAR _ZET—+LFMA
ZHNBEEHZAMHBA -

ERRE FRAYRFERAKRRZES
A4,140,00058 7T °

Y& ¥ JhGolden Toyz 2 & KB A &)
WMRARARITESBSELEE &
HALZLT BAGZLREAERZL
AL WIRE ETHRAERE
RARZBEANT

2019/20 Annual Report %

(@) The Group has leased from Homley Development
Limited (“Homley"”) certain properties for the
Group’s restaurant operation since 6 May 2002. The
monthly rental was negotiated with Homley with
reference to the market rents when the tenancy
agreement was renewed.

On 28 April 2017, the Group renewed the tenancy
agreement with Homley for a further period of
three years commencing 1 May 2017 to 30 April
2020 at a monthly rental of HK$360,000 (exclusive
of rates and management and air-conditioning fees)
and a rental deposit of HK$1,080,000. The monthly
rental was negotiated with Homley with reference
to the market rents as at 28 April 2017 as advised
by RHL Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent
professional property valuers. Details of the
arrangement are set out in the announcement
dated 28 April 2017 issued by the Company.

Rentals charged by Homley during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$4,140,000.

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy
and therefore is an associate of the executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is
regarded as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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EERANRBEERZ D 2R (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

AREM_TTHEE—A=+—A
E'Wiﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ SIES AL

—(E{EEAE B - AD AR
EREOREEAER . 8 e R
EFAE T EE

R-ZE—-—NE—A=+H AEBHA
SWEEBRHN=F BT —\F=
A—Bgz-_Z-—%—A=+—H
1k A#75,0008 0 ("ERIEZMW -
ERBRRAE) R ER£150,000
BT °

SWARE AN FARARR 2 EE
/900,000 > A A NEHF 2
ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?szi ﬁ%ﬁz?%it,zzil*
BERARIR - E—NF—A=+
REL 2 MR -

S J5Golden ToyZz 2 &K B A &)
HMARRAINTESLEELEE &
Eﬁﬂﬁj: CHBHgXTRBEEX T
AT WRE E AR AE R
RARZHE@EAT -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(b) The Group has leased from Hover City Industrial

Limited (“Hover City”) a unit of a residential
building since 31 January 2005. The monthly rental
was negotiated with Hover City with reference to
the market rents when the tenancy agreement was
renewed.

On 30 January 2018, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of three years commencing 1 February 2018
to 31 January 2021 at a monthly rental of
HK$75,000 (exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$150,000.

Rental charged by Hover City during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$900,000. The monthly rental was determined by
both parties with reference to market rents. Details
of the arrangement are set out in the
announcement dated 30 January 2018 issued by the
Company.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy and therefore is an associate of the executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is
regarded as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

AREEBH-_ZE——F—A=+H" @
AEREBRAR(TESENHEE—E
BEE o

MN-ZE-NE—A=+H A&EER
AEERN=F BT N\F_A
—BRRE-_E-_—F—A=+—H
1F - A7H100,000/8 7T (8 & = £ ~
EEBRAREB)LMNBEERS A
240,854/ 7T ©

SERE FABAYRFARR 2ES
#1,200,0008 > AMBEIHNER
sBmMAHemMETE -FEALHE
BEHEHRARAR -_ZE—N\F—A
= +HBERZAMA -

SEDEWZE2EMBRA - MERM
A& Golden Toyz 2 &M B AR - K
RARNFTNTEZTEESIELE  BH
PAxt Azt ERBABLZT
BB AL WARKR E AR RIARE AR
NE|ZBEBANL -
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() The Group has leased from Sky Global Investments

Limited (“Sky Global”) an office since 30 January
2012.

On 30 January 2018, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of three years commencing from 1 February
2018 to 31 January 2021 at a monthly rental of
HK$100,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$240,854.

Rental charged by Sky Global during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$1,200,000. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to the market rents.
Details of the arrangement are set out in the
announcement 30 January 2018 issued by the
Company.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hover
City which in turn is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Golden Toy and therefore is an
associate of the executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming,
Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng
Pak Lai, Lily, and is regarded as a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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EERANRBEERZ D 2R (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

ARG ZEBMEEERRESSSMAE
BH (BB ZEREBER)FE30005 (&
1E3]) [ 5 B 75 & KL 2 5T sk F B LASMNAY 4%
BEAIT2BEBRAETIRN[BARE
75 T AR BI BTl 5 4B B 1B X 5 MY AR BRAT 1
%] BRAKBZHEREISIELE -
ZEEMERE ETRAE14A 560K B E
BAEERNA E@ZEQQBRE 2 FHERE
RGPAEHERRERZEBREE LM -
RAREBZHGEI AR RBEZFAT -

ARRARBIUFFATES O ENAB IR
BRAEXZLZEMME  LHEAUER
DA RBIE—REEGRTETZEEE
B BEXZZBHGRA/RT  AEY
AMAARBBRRZEEHNE -

B EXPTIRBEE SN - NAB R EAETH B
NA RN A R H AR B A R B RT
VARBEZTERXEEREFHAAEKR
#m ARNFHEBRFREAEEIDAL
MZERMEBEBREL -

EEAK

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in (a) to
(c) above in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and the report of the auditor and have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into
by the Company in the ordinary course of its business,
on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the
terms of the agreement governing such transactions that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other contract of
significance, to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or holding company, or any subsidiary of its
holding company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

REBEFEATET IS FEEBASHE
EMAEMERBOEHZERERITHZ
BH -

BE HEIBEERD

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

RER > AABHETFKERRLER
B HEXBEOARRR 2N -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

FMEZEEeRBEARBIZEERE @
BIALZRERAHELERZ M55 BUR
MREARBIABEZERSREEARZ
o o

AEBzRESHEENE  BEREIW
T UARHIE -

AARER-_ZE—ZSFRAATHERMNER
HEFTE c BRESENIRETEERAE
REEBEZRHAREBUIEARBEFALZ
TE -BRAFE2FBEHINGETB
KM FE28 o

BEERBEE

The remuneration of all directors and senior
management of the Company are decided by the
remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Employees of the Group are compensated based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 10
May 2010. The Option Scheme provides long-term
incentives to directors and eligible employees and also
serves as a retention tool for high performing staff.
Details of the Option Scheme are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

EAN/NEIA/NETE R ASE =973 1 Rik:: S =2 )
BARBRERAEARAFTREIMESR KR
REEHM

REZDNBEFRE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

REASEZ  AREEMRESHMN &
EHAARNINREE-_ZET_ZTF=A
—t+—BIFEREEAREBH —E4

RARZAZFKKE -

EERFRNRERX

Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the directors, the directors
confirm that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 March 2020
and up to the date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

REARFRZERAMAFE166(E EEF
ARARR2EERFNBESRE %
FATHAEMZFEAL ZFALZEM
AN BEBATAREEEEA  BE
BZBEAETRATEBREARERER
HFEL - A ZERITIERMERE
SEXZMAFR ER WE -BX B
ERAX - ATERREHUIZERMBE -
HEML FERE NS HREEEME Ft A+
WMERZ HEEN BFXTHEZR
o

REBEFERN  ARREREESA A
BRDERTEWIE RIRFREEORR
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Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices
or trusts, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any wilful negligence, wilful
default, fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
said persons.

During the year under review, the Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover
potential legal actions against its Directors.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

AR ABERETS IRAFRZBE
iR EMWE R LEd BHEZ
E_TFE-_A=t-HILFE ~AEEY
EET N SR F AR 1

=B ED

The Company has share option scheme, the details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this annual report. Save as the aforesaid, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2020.

AUDITOR

R eHERTEFAMITRARA =2
—NFELAZTNABRTZERBEFRE
RERBERERNAFZEAE XAREFK
BE-RABRRBFAE L BRXE
FHEDER AT ([ZE B R]) BAR BRI A
BZERZEE  NEARED BHER
SETRIITREMELNZE

EREDERASEHE-_T_TF=A
St RLEFEHFeMBmER2EGTL
E- ARAIEREEZRRBFARG L1
E-HERER BREERERARAZEZ
A -

EFRERK

BEE
FE

B
—E-FEFXA-+=H

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the auditor of the
Company at the close of the annual general meeting
held on 29 July 2019 and did not seek for
re-appointment. RSM Hong Kong (“RSM") was
appointed as the auditor to fill the vacancy and its
appointment was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on the
same date.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2020 have been audited by
RSM. A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
RSM as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHENG HOP FAI
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
22 June 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

AZBEMITE cRBEXRNMBEBREEESR
RE(TERA]) REMBAR (TEEE])
FEREREFBNAZEAMBERE 2
hHE ERER_Z_TF=R=+—
AZHGRAaBRARRRBEZBLEFEZ
REBRalAtEZHEER SEERE
PREGEREMEBR  UAREEWKR
KT BREIESHERRME -

ARHBETRE HEMBEHRERESREH
BEGMAS((BESHMAE]) Ef
MEEMBREEY (BB BREE
ADEERTEHRR EEER_F_
ZFE-_A=+—RHzZBEAaUKARL &
SEREZALFEZGAMBRRLE
FAREeRE YDRBEBRRENZ
BREREZ SRR -

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 52 to 131, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

ATEREFBEHMAGRHZIELE
SHER (BB FF LR ) E17EZ - N17
RZEFENBTZEEFEEARARE [ZH
MEZEaM BRI ZEME] — R IEE
—FEil - REFEGFMRERM2E
XestimBxaesadagsall) &
TELN EEE - YCOEITEBETAS
ZEMBEEE - ATHRE  DITHER
LEGBEERENEEMARTZER
BRIEHER -
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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EE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

HEREZEZERBBEATZEEHE R
REABREVBERREGCRAEE S
B RITERBRREBRAVBREFE
BHESBEURMERER M TSttt
SEEBRREEER - ATTHEZHEHEE
FTEBEMAT :

HARELEE
Key Audit Matter

WA TR

Revenue recognition

F2HGmEMBRRAOMFIMEE G %
AIEFIFE4(m) ©

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements and note 4(m) of
significant accounting policies.

ENEBEB 2R HE - R TREWAER
RIARRERER -
We identified recognition of revenue from
restaurant operations as a key audit matter
due to the volume of transactions of
restaurant operations.

HE_Z_TF-_A=Z+—HIFE &
E@%%ﬁ%k%m4mow%mar

BRakEMEEKRER) - AE2BAK
ReERERAREE -
For the year ended 31 March 2020,

revenue from restaurant operations
amounted to approximately
HK$67,413,000 (consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income). Vast majority of revenue was
settled in cash or by credit card.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

RITMAHEARBEZBRETER
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

AITHEBEBRASTEZZF R

Our procedures in relation to revenue from restaurant
operations included:

. TR ARE IR RS W ATER 2 RS Z HETT R

A

o Obtaining an understanding of the revenue
business processes and testing key controls over
revenue recognition;

. MU A GE R - HEER A ETTARE R
o Performing tests of details, on a sample basis, on
recorded revenue;

. AR FERBARR : &

o Testing revenue cut-off at year-end; and
. ETOMREFHREEANTISENPRARS -

o Performing analytical procedures to identify any
unusual patterns of revenue.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FITMAHBEREREHETER ()
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

AOTEARARNERBEAEZIZRR U HERE
ZRERE

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment, we
tested the key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculations by:

AEEZERECAKHERBRETREE
BER  RIBEYE  BEMREBNERE
BEMNERAEBEFELEEH KT EEE -
REMETEHEYE - BB RREMERESR
BB c RFERELYE - |RE KK
1 ANk F 4 B A B0 URUE 9 Rl $R 15 494,000
T} 1,673,000/8 LA EIRE B ER D 2
FRERTREI SRR o RERDREIRR MY
X BENMREMEREESE BEREN
Al Bl & FEAT 225 B A KT KA Et - BT
HRAREEEB 2 ENERFTRENRE
The Group’s management performed
impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets for
restaurant operations where impairment
indicators were identified by estimating the
recoverable amounts of their property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets based
on value in use calculations. Impairment of
approximately HK$4,000 and HK$1,673,000
has been recorded during the year to reduce
the carrying amounts of certain property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
to their estimated recoverable amounts.
Significant judgements and estimates were
involved the identification of impairment
indicators and in the assessment of the
recoverable amounts of the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of
those restaurant operations, including
assumptions on the budgeted revenues and
gross margin of restaurant operations and
the discount rate.

BEANYE - BERRENEREERE 2R
BERBDHINEE M BRROMT17R
18 °

Relevant disclosures of impairment
assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are set
out in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Understanding from management on their process
for the identification of impairment indicators and
their method used for the impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets;

EARTASBEEERAOHE T - 57k AR HEE AT
Bl & %8 < BRI TR X REK

Involving our internal valuation experts to assist us
to evaluate the assumption of pre-tax discount
rate used in determining the recoverable amount;
and

LE BRI £ R I\ R ARRA Y 48 25T 8 K E B H IR K 178
HIR & BIE N - ARHE E A = 2R N A BUE -
BRERABRXRTIZNA (EREERTFEZX
AEEBIKAR) 2WALLERNRE -

Evaluating the appropriateness of other key
assumptions and inputs, including the growth rate
of revenue and major costs (included cost of
inventories consumed and staff costs) to revenue
ratio by comparing to historical performance and
relevant operation plans and considering current
and expected economic conditions.
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Hib&EHR

OTHER INFORMATION

EEAUHMERNAEERER - HbER B
RENFRZEN  ETBREFEEM
BHRR ML A RS -

ARG EMBHRRFH2BERALTRE
HiER  TIrEm%EEREREMAT
AR FE AW ©

RATEREAMBHREAMS  XTZE
EAMEEMEN KMEEEMERE
DHEEAVHRERKATEERZBRETE
BZERFEERANNE  SUFEFHEE
REBRRA - WATTERD T2 I
RRHEMENFEERERRM - N17A
BEEREE -t ATYEBEMERE
ATIARE -

EEGAYBBRRARKEZER

The directors are responsible for the Other Information.
The Other Information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E=ZFARARREBGHAMAERHZE
M BREENREER RGO ZKER
T REZSEAMBHRE  NEREH
BHRAFLEEMATFZE2HR XEEE

RRLBEZABANEERE  NEHLRERM
BRRZEBEINFERRFRBRMER
ZERERERA -

ERBEAVBRAT RIEFAE
K BEEEBEBRIEFLELE KK
AEEMERAT ERTR  GRIES
ARARME BERERERKEZEN X
EERBATHREEASELEAE S
B WHERRSERERER 2EHE -

EZZECWMPEERETREEE &5
BOFBREBENEE -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

AIWER  RYUSAVBBRERBES
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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We communicate with the Audit Committee, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Liu Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22 June 2020

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020
—EZEHF —E-NF
2020 2019
k=3 FHERT FHET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LON Revenue 8 67,413 85,372
ERTFEZKA Cost of inventories consumed (21,329) (27,419)
E X Gross profit 46,084 57,953
H i Ug A R E b fE5iE Other income and other losses 9 1,833 1,590
B TR Staff costs (30,191) (35,770)
EEMEE Operating lease rentals = (17,414)
e Depreciation (16,846) (47)
Hip s EEH Other operating expenses (19,845) (19,114)
KREBEER Loss from operations (18,965) (12,802)
B & B AR Finance costs 10 (4,272) -
BREAIEE Loss before tax (23,237) (12,802)
FrigHi 2 Income tax expense 11 - -
FEBBRARARE Loss for the year and loss
bz &8 attributable to owners of
the Company 12 (23,237) (12,802)
Ht 2wk Other comprehensive income:
e B HEEEzm oEEH ¢ Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
RAFEFAHEME2EYUREE  Fair value changes of equity
(MZAFEARMEE investments at fair value
W) 2BRETAE 2 AFE through other comprehensive
B E income (“FVTOCI") (119) (187)
HERgEEZH P EZEEz 2 Items that may be reclassified
EH - subsequently to profit or loss:
BREBINEBEEZ Exchange differences arising on
ME W E R translating foreign operations (1,125) -
AT EFAEMEEW 22 Fair value changes of debt
BEBEIREZATEES instruments at FVTOCI - (101)
FERBAHMEEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax (1,244) (288)
AABRRELMZEERME Total comprehensive income
Wi 858 for the year attributable
to owners of the Company (24,481) (13,090)
BREFARBEEHR Loss per share
(basic and diluted) 16 (1.19) (0.66)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZE_FTF=H=+—H As at 31 March 2020
R 20;9 2019
B 5 FET FAET
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
M - BB KRB Property, plant and equipment 17 3,341 2,104
EHESE Right-of-use assets 18 37,677 -
MEREZS Property rental deposits 2,506 5,294
43,524 7,398
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 19 1,077 1,052
2 5 N H b FE YRR Trade and other receivables 20 1,658 1,660
MEHERS Property rental deposits 1,438 -
BNV EFAREMER -

W 2 lRiET A Equity instruments as at FVTOCI 21 1,219 1,338
SHEARITER Pledged bank deposits 22 416 415
RHEERITE K Short-term bank deposits
- REZHABB=EA — with original maturity

over three months = 2,503
—-REHHRA=EARA — with original maturity within
- three months 48,309 61,464
R1T MR AR Bank and cash balances 8,527 12,273
62,644 80,705
hREBAE Current liabilities
B5 NEMERNR Trade and other payables 23 8,602 7,813
HE & & Lease liabilities 24 9,646 =
18,248 7,813
REEEFE Net current assets 44,396 72,892
BEERADER Total assets less current
liabilities 87,920 80,290
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
H {th B 5B Other payables 23 558 -
HEAE Lease liabilities 24 31,210 —
31,768 -
EEFRE NET ASSETS 56,152 80,290
% 2 R & 6 Capital and reserves
A% 7K Share capital 25 194,631 194,631
= Reserves 27 (138,479) (114,341)
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 56,152 80,290

R-ZEBE-_ZEENA-T—RAEESTSH
B BEBATIEEARRESE

BEE

CHENG Hop Fai
EZE

DIRECTOR
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and are signed on its behalf by:

BBE

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

EF
DIRECTOR

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020

U REEE  BEE
Bz BHEE  BAgk (1] B EiRE  ERER 4%
Investment Share
Share Share Capital ~ revaluation options ~ Translation  Accumulated
capital ~ premium Reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Wa2mlh) (W2 7i)
(note 27(b)i) (note 27(b)i)
TR T T Thn T Thn Thn T
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKY'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
R-Z-/\EmA-H At 1 April 2018 194,631 88,794 84123 37 1470 - (277,059) 92,287
FEEENALE Totel comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - (12.802) (12,802)
RAEEFALM2ENGZ  Change in fair value of equity
REIE/ATEEY insruments at FVTOCI - - - (187) - - - (187)
RATEHARMEENEZ  Change in fair value of debt
ERI&ZATERY insruments at FVTOC - - - (1o) - - - (1o1)
RIS (Hits) Share-based payments note 28) - - - - 1,093 - i 1093
FRERR Changes in equity for the year - - - (28) 1,093 -8 ()
NEZA=T-A At 31 March 2019 194,631 88,794 84123 39 2,563 = (289,860) 80,290
R-T-0E0A-E At Aprl 2019 R BIM WD » LB - WK% 80
EEZANREE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - (1.125) (23.31) (24362)
BRAFEIARp2AREL  Change i fair value of equity
FEIRZATEED instruments at FVTOCI - - - (119 - - - (119
WRARALH (Wiks) Share-based payments (note 28) - - - - 3 - - £l
FRERRY Changes in equty for the year - - - (19 33 ([P IV V1) B )
R-E-FE=f=1-A At 31 March 2020 194,631 88,794 84123 (80) 2,906 (1125 (313,097) 5,152

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020
—z-%f —ne

2020 2019

THERT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash flows from operating
activities

R 75 B B 1B Loss before tax (23,237) (12,802)
HE Adjustments for:
ME - BELRRBZTE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 770 47
FRAEEEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16,076 -
B & Ak A Finance costs 4,272 =
FE KB EWA Interest and dividend income (1,806) (1,573)
Y BEREERBE Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment 4 =
EREEEZRE Impairment loss of right-of-use
assets 1,673 -
AR 1 72 = 2 A+t Share-based payments 343 1,093
LEBCEPRICREEE Operating loss before working capital
changes (1,905) (13,235)
FEOEm E (Increase)/decrease in inventories (25) 165
5 NEMmEKE IE/U( 2 Decrease in trade and other receivables 2 668
B 5 N EfhEN T Increase/(decrease) in trade and
#an, Crd) other payables 389 (171)
REXBZMARSE Cash used in operations (1,539) (12,573)
HEAEGNE Interest on lease liabilities (4,195) -
RETHFAZREFE Net cash used in operating
activities (5,734) (12,573)
?ﬁﬁE@FﬁEEZﬁﬁlms Cash flows from investing activities
ERFE RIS Interest and dividend received 1,412 1,573
BEWE BERRERE Purchases of property,
plant and equipment (2,011) (2,030)
ERAFEFAEMEEKE Proceeds on maturity of debt
ZEBITAZFSHKIA instruments at FVTOCI = 1,124
RRRIHBERZR= 1. H Withdrawal of short-term deposits
2RISR with original maturity over three
months 2,503 70,366
FREER ZRITER Placement of pledged bank deposits (1) (1)
FHRRINBEAZR=EA Placement of short-term deposits
ZREHFER with original maturity over three
months - (2,503)
RETBHELECZEHESTFE Net cash generated from investing
activities 1,903 68,529
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020

—E-EHF —E—NF

2020 2019
FTHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
METHFRELEZHESRE Cash flows from financing activities
HEXHZ AL Principal elements of lease payment (11,945) -
BMEETBFFACESEEE Net cash used in financing activities (11,945) =
IE%EUE%%EIE B Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
W) R cash equivalents (15,776) 55,956
? g -2 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,125) -
E’\‘lﬁ HzRER Cash and cash equivalents
ReEEHER at 1 April 73,737 17,781
R=A=+t—HzZzHEK Cash and cash equivalents
RE%ERA at 31 March 56,836 73,737
ReRBEEEERB M Analysis of cash and cash
equivalents
REHBR=EAAZ Short-term bank deposits with
RHRITHER original maturity within three
months 48,309 61,464
RIT IR & 4k # Bank and cash balances 8,527 12,273
56,836 73,737

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION
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EEEFRLDIEI8E - KRR ZKH
REBBERSFBR AR ([HR
FTl) EtR LT °
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ARAIEERE REBRZEST
fit 5 32 2 Kong Fai International
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A (TEEE]) RARKKERARF
L ERERIER T o
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G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business is Unit 108,
1st Floor, East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
Kong Fai International Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"),
is the ultimate parent. Mr. Cheng Hop Fai
(“Mr. Cheng"”) and his family members are the
ultimate controlling parties of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
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These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”). HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020
3. RAFTIREBIEBUBHHRE 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
p- 4= KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(a) EAFITREZETEBMERS (a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
Z A

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16
Leases, and a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the
developments have had a material effect on
how the Group's results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC) 15 Operating Leases-Incentives and
HK(SIC) 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. HKFRS 16 introduced a single accounting
model for lessees, which requires a lessee to
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16
did not have an impact or leases where the
Group is the lessor. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from HKAS
17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to assess the effect that leases have on the
financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of an entity.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) ERAHTREBIETBUBHRS

A (%)
BB BHEERE165HE
(&)

AEBEB-ZT-AFMOA—HE
BREABEVH RS ERF16
o AREBERERALETEY
E - EAmMBERERERNR
AR ERARE T -NAFOA
—HHERNAR - LBEH
AFEY - TEBREFE S
EHF1THRTINZR -

BRBESHRRESNIELM
TERMERANBEEEENE
—HFHBHINOT :

(a) HERTEZ
HETHESHE S EiFHE
Mt B/ BBUBERE
EREF1GRBEEFESR
R EHEBERNZEHEHENEE
MERMATHEE  HAl A
BEEFHREET EXFHE
BETEHNEENRRIA
Mtz REPESBREY
1O R 25 B - B R R 1 A
B o

REBFBERNR T —HFEMN
A—BR &L EE W
AEHEBE BV BIREER
FleRBEEBAENTEE -
MR-_ZT—NAFEMA—BZ
ARV MEHMmE A5 E
KABEUERET A
BELBLEAYRELHER
CEHEXBEHEMED
TiE e Al LATIRIBERS
ST ERE1IRTEAEE
WA K EERIES B %W
S EAFE165 AR5 &AM
g mimFEAERER
LM EHRNEE AR
BHFEITHEH -
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(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as
from 1 April 2019. The Group has elected to
use the modified retrospective approach and
has therefore recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 April 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and
the transition options applied are set out
below:

(@) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease
mainly relates to the concept of control.
HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis of
whether a customer controls the use of an
identified asset for a period of time, which
may be determined by a defined amount
of use. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
were entered into or changed on or after
1 April 2019. For contracts entered into
before 1 April 2019, the Group has used
the transitional practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of
which existing arrangements are or contain
leases. Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under HKAS
17 continue to be accounted for as leases
under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements
continue to be accounted for as executory
contracts.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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3. RN ITRLEIEETEETHKRSE 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
S Bl () KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) ERFAIRLEITIEBUERS (a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
28 (&) (Continued)
BB BHEEEREI6HHE ] HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
(#)
(b) AN @515 FE T xR B (b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

ot 27 5

BB HmELRFE165 5
BRERBEBSFTERFE17H
EXREBEABHESHAK
EHESRMEMAENRTE -
MRz  NEBEAFEM
ABEEEHEEE At -
BREEIBEESGTEL
%Wﬁ”*%méﬁfmm
E HEHAEREEESE
ERERIN -

MRERMDBR/KLEHENE
ERRBEERER  A&H
EERARNEREREBHEH

EEERNESERAIE-
ﬁ%ﬁlf?%%M$ﬁﬁ

EERFEMNENF750%FE
9.65% °

BEEREERETHHRE
ZERFE165 AEBERE X
ERARETBHRELERFE16
HeE HERUTHERN R
AIfTHEE F A

() BETHFHKEHRRE
RERB BB WELE
BIZE 1690 E A FH121&
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T -_EHF=F=+—H
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REEBTBRELEASE
165 EEEREERE
RERAREENHTE
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HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is
the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS
17, other than those short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets which are
exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for
leases previously classified as operating
leases, the Group has applied the
incremental borrowing rates of the
relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The average incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant
group entities with the range from 7.50%
t0 9.65%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the
Group applied the following recognition
exemption and practical expedients at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

(i) elected not to apply the requirements
of HKFRS 16 in respect of the
recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets to leases for which
the remaining lease term ends within
12 months from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where
the lease term ends on or before 31
March 2020;
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AEESAERRIERE
B R

(i) REXEMRBHFERE
REEERMKGE
B R

(iv) EREBEERF37
SRR RRER S BB R
TE HEHERTAR

f& -

RETEXRNEEEREREE
ERHEBEEERABECHER
HHRELEHIE  AEEEH
TEERBMAESHERAR
EREEELHERE -

ARBEIREARNEERE
ZHERZME A&EEK
FRGRTERE12RAED
ZRE DRI ERREREE
EFHAERE - ARER ]
THAMRE ERERHEER
ENHERERABCERE
BT EROFERFENES
AR

2019/20 Annual Report £ %§

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

(i) used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial
application in determining the lease
term for the Group's leases with
extension options;

(iii) excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application; and

(iv) relied on the assessment of whether
leases are onerous by applying HKAS
37 as an alternative to an impairment
review.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or
the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

(a) EAHTREBIETBUHBHRS
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(b) AN G R T %R AK
Mz & (&)
TRHFIN_F-NF=A
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(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(Continued)

The following table reconciles the operating
lease commitments as disclosed in note 33
as at 31 March 2019 to the opening balance
for lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April

BEEA AR SRR 2019:
FHET
HK$'000
RZZE—NE=A=+—H Operating lease commitments
BEE o e E A disclosed as at 31 March 2019 30,298
m: AEERRHEBEMET Add: lease payments for the
BITEEHEERET additional periods where
g N ) HE & 3R the Group considers it
reasonably certain that it
will exercise the extension
options 35,420
65,718
B R B R Less: total future interest expenses (11,866)
RZZE—NFMHNA—-BER Lease liabilities recognised as at
WEHERRE 1 April 2019 53,852
Hep: Of which are:
nEBEEaRE Current lease liabilities 13,059
ERBEEaE Non-current lease liabilities 40,793
53,852

RN BERREHENHEE
HEEHAEEECRERAR
MR NHEREMERNE
BER YR _-_T—-NF
—A=t—BZHKEaUHMNR
MRERANEERBERME
Nk HEFRIESEIFD

A% -
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The right-of-use assets in relation to leases

previously classified as operating leases
have been recognised at an amount equal
to the amount recognised for the
remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) ERAHTREBIETBUBHRS

%R ()

BB BHEERFEI167[HE

(&)

(b) EHEN B R IE T %L AK
MZ & (&)
MEHEREREFTENK
HBELRNFIREMTE ([F
B R EERER]) A
RSP ERAAEBEFE-
RO THERARHRAEBEN
BN SFESNE BN RA
FAAEREEERA -

TERBAKAE LM BERSE
ERIF1RBEARNEE G AR

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(Continued)

Property rental deposits are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
("HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

The following table summarises the
impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on

BRI R E £ R the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position:
RZZB-hF RZZB-hF
ZB=t-A mA-A
ZEEE REER EfiAE d i
R Line items in the consolidated Carrying Carrying
BRUBREERE16% statement of financial position amountasat  Recognition Re-  amount as at
YELRRUBRRRER impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 16 31 March 2019 of leases  classification 1 April 2019
TETL TETL TETL TETL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(] Assets

EREAE Right-of-use assets = 54,733 1743 56,476
nERERS Property rental deposits 5,294 - (1,743) 3,551

8 Liabilities
REaE Lease liabilities - 53,852 - 53,852
Ao 308 (E7RE) Other payables (non-current) - 881 _ 881
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
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(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(c) Impact of the financial results and cash
flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 April
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the previous policy of
recognising operating lease rentals and
staff costs incurred under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
This results in a negative impact on the
reported loss from operations in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income,
as compared to the results if HKAS 17 had
been applied during the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the Group as a lessee is required to
split rentals paid under capitalised leases
into their principal element and interest
element (note 30(a)). These elements are
classified as financing cash outflows and
operating cash outflows respectively.
Although total cash flows are unaffected,
the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore results
in a significant change in presentation of
cash flows within the consolidated
statement of cash flows (note 30(b)).

The following tables give an indication of
the estimated impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on the Group’s financial results
and cash flows for the year ended 31
March 2020, by adjusting the amounts
reported under HKFRS 16 in these
consolidated financial statements to
compute estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been recognised
under HKAS 17 if this superseded standard
had continued to apply in 2020 instead of
HKFRS 16, and by comparing these
hypothetical amounts for 2020 with the
actual 2019 corresponding amounts which
were prepared under HKAS 17.

2019/20 Annual Report £ 3k



ire SRR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. HRMHMAIREEITEBMBRE 3.
A (&)

-
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) ERAHTREBIETBUBHRS
%R ()
BB BHEERFEI167[HE
(&)
(c) HAXEEHYBFEREREE R
BENZE(E)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(¢) Impact of the financial results and cash
flows of the Group (Continued)

et 22 “E-0F
2020 2019
Nk AREE
BE2EHEE &
REFRHH nE: (EmBEEE —2-RFz 0 “E-nf

BEEN  ERUMEERS EHEN BREB(EM BEFEEH
6% EAF16H2 %) BEFEST EAEUERE
BEze8 HERMEXH (W) EHE7H)  2&REk

Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
Add back: related to Compared to
Amounts HKFRS 16 operating  Hypothetical amounts
reported  depreciation lease asif ~ amounts for reported
under  and interest under HKAS 17 2020 as if for 2019
HKFRS 16 expense (Note 1) under HKAS 17 under HKAS 17
T T TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRAZEREREEEE16% Financial results for year ended
FUYHE-Z-EFE=ZH 31 March 2020 impacted by
ST-ALEEZHBEEE:  the adoption of HKFRS 16:
fd-J 1} Loss from operations (18,965) 16,076 (16,140) (19,029) (12,802)
BEMK Finance costs (4,272) 4,272 - = -
REAER Loss before tax (23,237) 20,348 (16,140) (19,029) (12,802)
EEER Loss for the year (23,23) 20,348 (16,140) (19,029) (12,802)
2019/20 Annual Report &3k G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHEREBERA T
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3. MM REETEBHBRSE

piz =
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) EAHTREBIETBUHBHRS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

28 (48) (Continued)
BB BIHEERFEI6[HE HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
(%)
(c) HAEEFYHEREERE LT (c) Impact of the financial results and cash
B E (&) flows of the Group (Continued)
S 3:3 “E-hE
2020 2019
ApaE
RE2 i EE
(BMRERE -8z HIE-NF

REERHH EHEN BREE(ED REFAEE
BEERZ 165 F1%)  REFAEG AFTREEL
BE2e®  (WHR2)  EHEUR) Ll

Estimated
amounts
related Compared to
Amounts  to operating  Hypothetical amounts
reported lease asif ~ amounts for reported
under under HKAS 17 2020 as if for 2019
HKFRS 16 (Notes 1 &2) under HKAS 17 under HKAS 17
TAL TAL TAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERBHBREENE 168 Line items in the consolidated statement of
ZBCREZfZ cash flows for year ended 31 March 2020
MEARLRERNERYE: impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 16:

LEXE FIRRS Cash used in operations (1,539) (16,140) (17,679) (12,573)

ERAERE ZFISHA Interest element of lease rentals paid (4,195) 4,195 - -

RETHHAZASFE Net cash used in operating activities (5,734) (11,945) (17,679) (12,573)

REMZAS S Capital element of lease rentals paid (11,945) 11,945 - =

REEDFRAZREFH Net cash used in financing activities (11,945) 11,945 - -

Kt - Note:

1. [EgEEEE@NMETD 1. The "estimated amounts related to operating
HIEES BT ERE17 leases” is an estimate of the amounts of the
FR _E_ZFNABERZ cash flows in 2020 that relate to leases which
BRTesEARKREHRE 2 would have been classified as operating
HEEEN_Z_ZFIRE leases, if HKAS 17 had still applied in 2020.
mMEZ M Z s’ This estimate assumes that there were no
o EES e SE175 difference between rentals and cash flows
R-CE-_TEMREAZIE and that all of the new leases entered into in
W & IR 2 & 2020 would have been classified as operating
WEEZRE AR T leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still
IV A EBERES applied in 2020. Any potential net tax effect
%@ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁwﬁﬂﬁ’\ﬁﬁi‘“ is ignored.

ZHE - %TT/@E@%RIE
L BT

2 I 5 2 CZEE S 2. In this impact table these cash outflows are
S AEE %ﬁ DEFE IR reclassified from financing to operating in
At & & & %Ejjﬁﬁﬁﬁ,zgﬁu@ order to compute hypothetical amounts of
FHELBRETBREA RS net cash used in operating activities and net
FEEH B %’E ZE ZZDE,% cash used in financing activities as if HKAS 17
il 7% still applied.
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3. RMFTINREEBITEBMERS 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
8| (48) KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

(b) MBI R E R ZH AT REE

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

ABEBMBHREER
AEBEYERFEANR-_F—N
FOA—HRBZTBRFERED
PR E (R R AR R 2 ¥ AT M AR AT
BEEVBRELER - ZFHRT R
RIEFTBEVHHRSENBET
SRR A E BB EIH

ERMBWMERNEIRIETEB AT

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2019. These new and revised
HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

LA B Hisk
it 3k =)
SEEARE A
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after

—E_ZEF—-H—H
1 January 2020

EREGFHEAZVRLEB G ENESR ZETEAENER —E-_FF—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

1 January 2020

FRMBHEEAFN - A ERFIR K —E_FF—H—H
RN MEERETHR 2SR M REERE

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

ANERER LA FHT REERT
EREVHRELENN EXRERH
FIRMEEOF EETHE - B
DG &R RAZEENY
HAVBHRREEETRATENT
BEMERK -

2019/20 Annual Report £ %§

1 January 2020

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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mET A BB RS R B H
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BREPITEEAE - 5 NS E H Bk
BRERNEE B ESPHERR
BERNBRER LA OHE - HRH
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RERSEANBREARAZEE
&S BB ¢

(a) #EHRE
REMBHRERBEBEARRQE REKM
BARIEBZ=A=+—HIitzH
BHRER -MERARRIEANEEY
HEAEGENERE E4XA5&H
BBALEERESMEZAREGE
ZEAEEHOHR WHEHBB
HEBNBEIMEZEZEER
B BNIZEHZER - EAEEE
BHRITENDNEEFRENRITEZ
R E@AES (AHEER®R
EREATENTH K A&
BERNEERBERES -

EFHHENER  AREEeEE
HEBEEREBEAREMEFTHE
MEBEERZE ERFAARE
RITEEERZENBRT 7
GEBHER -

fBAREEGEEEELRASH
Z AEEE AR ISR
bz BFIEARE AR

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting
policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 March.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power
over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.
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The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and
(ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of
that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and
any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and
unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders
and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF

69



70

4= A

N

A PR ERR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020
4. FEZFER (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) #=ERE (&) (a) Consolidation (Continued)
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(ii)

(b)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

(i)

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss.
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(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

- Assets and

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at

average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.
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(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified in the
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.
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(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Over the lease term
or 2 — 8 years,
whichever is the shorter

Furniture and
restaurant
equipment

The residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress represents furniture
and restaurant equipment pending installation
under construction, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.
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(d) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily storage room. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Property rental deposits are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group's estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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(d) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment
properties and lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In the comparative period, leases which did not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group were classified as
operating leases, except for the property held
under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property
was classified as investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified.

Where the Group had the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases were charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis was more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received were
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
were incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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(f) Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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(g) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

—  FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.
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(9)

(h)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as
at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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(i) Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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() Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidence a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(m) Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue of the Group arising from operation of
Chinese restaurants is generally recognised at a
point in time when food and beverages are
served to the customers.

Other income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the

shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.
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(n) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to the profit
or loss represents contributions payable by
the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

(o) Share-based payments

Group issues equity-settled share-based

payments to certain directors and employees.
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(o)

(p)

(a)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments to
directors and employees are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants are measured at the fair value of
the services rendered or, if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured,
at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date
the Group receives the services and is
recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.
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The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for
indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on trade receivables. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The expected credit losses on
these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.
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(s)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit
losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’'s debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the
Group’s core operations.
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(s)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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(s)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term, and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’'s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a
function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is
estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash
flows used for determining the expected credit
losses is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17
(prior to 1 April 2019).

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period,
but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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5. EEHE R ETEMET CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
ERSBE2E X H Critical judgements in applying accounting
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policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise
the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group’s operation.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the current financial year, no lease term has
been reassessed.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or
any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flows
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 March
2020 were HK$3,341,000 (2019: HK$2,104,000)
and HK$37,677,000 (2019: HK$Nil) respectively.

Deferred taxation

At 31 March 2020, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$221,542,000 (2019: HK$198,458,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are greater than expected,
a material recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which such recognition takes place.
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6. BiEERmERE 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 March 2020, if the Australian dollar
("AUD") had weakened 5 per cent against HK$
with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$523,000 (2019:
HK$1,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange loss on bank and cash
balances denominated in AUD. If the AUD had
strengthened 5 per cent against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$523,000 (2019: HK$1,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on bank and cash balances
denominated in AUD.

At 31 March 2020, if the Renminbi (“RMB")
had weakened 5 per cent against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,000 (2019: HK$187,000)
higher, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on bank and cash balances
denominated in RMB. If the RMB had
strengthened 5 per cent against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,000 (2019: HK$187,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on bank and cash balances
denominated in RMB.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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(b) Price risk

(c)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
mainly through its investment in equity
securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on
the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2019: 10%)
higher/lower other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 March 2020 would increase/
decrease by HK$122,000 (2019: consolidated
other comprehensive income would increase/
decrease by HK$134,000). This is mainly due to
the changes in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will
not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and derivative financial assets
is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.
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6. BIBEMEIE (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
() EERAK (&) (c) Credit risk (Continued)
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Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group's established
policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 days from
the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 90 days past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases. The
expected loss rate of current trade receivables
and contract assets are assessed to be nearly
0%. As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the loss
allowance provision for these balances was not
material.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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(c) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for trade
receivables during the year is as follows:
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Financial assets at FVTOCI and amortised cost

All of the Group's investments at FVTOCI and
amortised cost are considered to have low
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised
during the period was therefore limited to
12-month expected losses. Management
considers ‘low credit risk’ for listed debt
securities to be an investment grade credit
rating with at least one major rating agency.
Other instruments are considered to be low
credit risk when they have a low rate of default
and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

Financial assets at FVTOCI includes listed debt
securities. The loss allowance for debt
investment at FVTOCI is recognised in profit or
loss and reduces the fair value loss otherwise
recognised in other comprehensive income. As
at 31 March 2019, the loss allowance provision
for debt investment was not material.
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6.

—E-TF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

BERERE (&) 6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(d) REMHE
AREBEREKETEHAEZEER X
FEHRSEST K UERER
EHEeHE mEREESHEE
Bz REBEeENK-

AEEFMTEESHBBEREAR
IR MEN BB RS T
B

R-B-2=A=1-H
B A RAMEATE
AERE

At 31 March 2020
Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

RZZ-NE=ZA=1+-H
BHREMENTE

At 31 March 2019
Trade and other payables

(e) IR
AEEEEONERRERRE
HTHER - RITEFFTIRF A
KB MXREEROTISZAMN
i &L o B HIF IR 1777 KA A2 5
RITERABEF R E - Bt
FHERFENRER -

MEZEHHGAMBERERTZED
Ko Br EXAtsN - REBEIRE
HMEANGFEEEMAE K
SENRAMEEREREEN
EREMIGMEREENTE -

(e)

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities is as follow:

MER 122F 2E5F
On demand or Between Between ok
within 1year 1and 2years 2 and 5 years Total
TER THEx TER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8,602 - 800 9,402
12,815 11,807 23,614 48,236
7,813 - - 7,813

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk
mainly arises from its bank deposits. Bank
deposits bear interests at variable rates varied
with the then prevailing market condition.
Pledged bank deposits and short-term bank
deposits bears interest at fixed interest rate and
therefore is subject to fair value interest value
risk.

The effect of changes in interest rates is not
significant to the consolidated financial
statements. Except as stated above, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.
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B E R ERE (&)

HE-_ZT-_TF= A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(f) R=ZE=-BF=A=+—AHz%

(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31

T B¥ER March 2020
—E-EF —E-hF
2020 2019
TET FBTT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EMEE Financial assets:
B ER AT 2/ Financial assets measured at
SRMEE amortised cost 62,292 83,515
Tﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘)\ﬁ?@iﬁl&¥ Financial assets measured
MERmEE— o LA at FVTOCI - equity instruments 1,219 1,338
SEEE: Financial liabilities:
R KA E R Financial liabilities measured at
ERAE amortised cost 9,143 7,783
(9) 2¥E (g) Fair values
REBFALZRAE T BHBARRKAH The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
SREBEENSBHEBENERDEHE assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
EXANAFERE consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.
NFEEFTE FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

RFERETH2EERT A B R
BFXZHE-—BEEMPRNNER
BERS N 2B DAT¥¢@¥E
‘EJrEE’JTBZEéﬁﬁH NFEERERE  Z%
f&Ix T%Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\\ﬁra”‘”?ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ@&
?}TIE’JEH)\ D= e

— ERNET A BB
WABERE  BSH A #E R EENK
BERERTIS 2 W
{%(ﬂi%‘“uﬂ%‘) ;

FE_& BEESBEREENL
BWABEBER  HERMAUBRZBA
2ig (% 5&??/71%
KRB FR M)
=& BEXBENTAIE
BWABERE  RBWAHE-

AREEHOBRE  BFEHIERER
N /REW*ZEE HERE AME
= fE AR B B E AR — @
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: guoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.
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HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020

7. AEEFE(HE) 7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

R-ZE-_EF="A=+—HHAFE Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31
ERMK IR March 2020:

R=ZF=-%F
=A=+—H
AFE &
Fair value
measurements
as at

31 March 2020
E—&

Level 1

THERT
HK$'000

15 Description
REMAFEE: Recurring fair value measurements:

BRAFEGFAEMEARRSZRETE Equity instruments at FVTOCI
- F TR AREF — Listed equity securities 1,219

RZZE—NF
=A=+-H
ATEIE
Fair value
measurements
as at

31 March 2019
E—H

Level 1
FET
HK$'000

15 Description
REMLATETE: Recurring fair value measurements:

BAFEFAEMME2ERSZBETR Equity instruments at FVTOC|
- ETRAES — Listed equity securities 1,338
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HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

REHEATELERRE (ASHTE
FEAFERARDEERZWH
R IREBEAREZERBELERA
REIBRR - BRFaEa kA
2EREREGEAEVBRREK - BH
ZMEFE 2B ERTT2ELR
eRmkEMEEBERFIIZES
B

HREMF ZIRBARFRBDEE
BREFIMUNRELE WRAEMEE
Bt BARKEABARERS
BEELHIHEHN -

AEBREMFELERFERMBBER
WA Z10% °

PRER2EE (EXEARRERADN
BA)

HRPANEEZEZ  ERERREH
B T ERE B BE R U A o

2019/20 Annual Report £ %§

Financial information provided to the chief
operating decision makers, being the executive
directors, for performance assessment and resources
allocation is based on the overall operating results
and financial position of the Group which constitute
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the consolidated
statement of financial position. Financial
information regarding the segment for both years
can be made with reference to the results as set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

No geographical information is presented as all
external revenue for both years and non-current
assets are either derived from or located in Hong
Kong, an analysis of the consolidated revenue and
non-current assets by geographical location is not
presented.

There is no customer contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for both years.

Operation of Chinese restaurants (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For operation of Chinese restaurants, revenue is
recognised when food and beverages are served to
the customers.
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HE

—Z2-_FF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

9. HMW AR HAMEE 9. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
TR FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hu A Other income
IRITE R —F B U A Interest income - bank deposits 1,352 1,573
i& B U A Dividend income 60 59
I A Sundry income 113 75
HEEFBWA Imputed interest income 394 -
1,919 1,707
Hihg58 Other losses
HIE H BB Net exchange loss (86) (117)
et Total 1,833 1,590
10. @ E KK 10. FINANCE COSTS
—E-FF —E-NF
2020 2019
FTHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
HERBZHERX Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(Hti£18) (note 18) 4,272 _

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

2019/20 Annual Report &3k



ire SRR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. FISHAX

HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

A 0 7N S 1B 170 R 18 4F /= 3 % SR B st

7N &= B 72 B OM E 10 B SZ B Y B X R 28
B30%M R EHABMANEH (ZF
—NEF: TER) e

P15 31 7 X B IR BR TR B S 1B R A & 8
NEHHEABEBEIHEROT

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required
since the Group has no assessable profit for both
years.

The Group’s subsidiary incorporated in Australia
were subject to Australian income tax at a rate of
30% (2019: N/A).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense
and the product of loss before tax multiplied by the
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

g 33 —E-NF
2020 2019
THERT FHAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
x5 B B 1B Loss before tax (23,237) (12,802)
BEEABNEHHE16.5% Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
—EF—F :16.5%) 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

B ZHIE (3,834) (2,112)
BERMZ WA ZTHRIEZE  Tax effect of income that are not taxable (543) (245)
A BEHIBRMRIES 2 Tax effect of expense that are not

T2 deductible 576 230
RERT AR 2 FHEFE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 3,809 2,165
HAth Others = (38)
EAREEMADEEER Effect of different tax rates of

KRENTRBIBELE a subsidiary operating in other

jurisdiction (8) _

FTS M X

Income tax expense - -

AR5 B R AN 52 B 8 A R] 4 A VB3 88
AXRBHMNz2HAKBARBEED
221,542,000 L (Z & — L F :
198,458,000 7T) ° M K EEHEE K
o FI SRR+ B A R B) B R IR
B 18 49221,542,0008 T (ZE — 1
F : 198,458,000/ 7T ) MR IR E 7 1B
BE - AFEELAARPBHAZHEERE
MR BB EHERE - EMESE
EZFABERERALE -

2019/20 Annual Report £ %§

At the end of the reporting period the Group has
unused tax losses of HK$221,542,000 (2019:
HK$198,458,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the HK$221,542,000 (2019:
HK$198,458,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The aforesaid unused tax
losses of the Group have not yet been agreed by
respective tax authorities. All tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely for both years.
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HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020

12. FEEBE

. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

AEEFEBECDHBRATEE

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after
charging the following:

“E-FF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
TERT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEEN 2 B2 Auditor’s remuneration 480 450
BERGFEZKAK Cost of inventories consumed 21,329 27,419
e Depreciation
— M - BB RE — property, plant and equipment 770 47
—(FREEE — right-of-use assets 16,076 -
TR EE AR 2 S A Equity-settled share-based payments 343 1,093
T REFEZKELHEERM  Operating leases charges — land and
buildings - 17,414
ME H B8 FH Net exchange loss 86 117
Y BB R&E 2 RE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment 4 =
EREEEZRE Impairment loss on right-of-use assets 1,673 -
13. EERAIF X 13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
g 32 —E-NE
2020 2019
THERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
2 A AW &=3: Salaries, bonuses and allowances 28,875 33,650
RIRBHR B Retirement benefits scheme contributions 973 1,027
X EEURMD R A Equity-settled share-based payments 343 1,093
30,191 35,770

EURSHFMAL

AEERSHFMZRMLALH - Hf
O (ZT—NF : W) SAREH
TEE(EMERN TXHEI14AH
B) #RTFT—UAL(ZE—-NF: —

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included four (2019: four) directors
whom emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 14. The emoluments of the

f)ZEEMESHT : remaining one (2019: one) individual are set out
below:

—2-%F —T-NEF

2020 2019

THERT FAET

HK$'000 HK$'000

e KoEBL Salaries and allowances 399 602

1 06 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)

AL 2B BN T5E :

0/ 7T - 1,000,000/ 7T

The emoluments fell within the following band:

—ECEF
2020
AE
Number of
individuals

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 1

—T-NF
2019

A
Number of
individuals

14, EET/AN R ER

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

ExoME
BUESOHMOT -

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director is set as below.

REAALERES (TRATAAAENELR)
FiRfRBENREROHE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

(H&Ei) Ex
HipfEH BIRER
e ¥ CHER: Eig 3 EERE @zt
(Note i) Employer's
Estimated contribution to
money value of  a retirement Housing
Fees Salaries  other benefits benefit scheme allowance Total
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
HTES: Executive directors:
HBariE Mr. Cheng Hop Fai = 1,125 70 - 900 2,095
AT Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 69 18 - 447
il e Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita = 720 69 18 - 807
FaBat Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily - 680 69 18 - 767
BUEHTES:  Independent non-executive directors:
BEAHLE Mr. Law Toe Ming I - 22 - - 9%
RIRERE (W) Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, William (note (ii)) 15 = 8 = - 23
2EBEE Mr. Leung Tai Chiu 72 - by) - - 94
HEREE Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 57 - - - - 57
HZ-Z-ZEME Total for 2020 216 2,885 329 54 900 4,384
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HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020

14, EEENRER (B)

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

EEsoME (&) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
REMALERERZ(FRARARKENBLE)
PR RIS E KB M S
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
(Hiz) =3
itz RINER
we e fhEt e ® AR EEZH et
(Note i) Employer's
Estimated  contribution to
money value of a retirement Housing
Fees Salaries  other benefits  benefit scheme allowance Total
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HTES: Executive directors:
HEE%RE Mr. Cheng Hop Fai - 1,350 220 - 900 2,470
Hr\gt Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 220 18 - 598
BHHLL Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita = 720 220 18 = 958
gRBR+ Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily - 720 220 18 - 958
BUEHTESZ:  Independent non-executive directors:
BERLE Mr. Law Toe Ming 72 - Wl - - 143
K@EELE (H2() Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, William (note (i) 7 - n - = 143
REBEE Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 7 - 71 - - 143
HEZT-NFH5 Total for 2019 216 3,150 1,093 54 900 5,413

Bt

(i) HtEiEAcHEeREeNEs B
Pt - RERESE o

(i) RZZE-NFRATNBEHE-
THRAERKEMNESTHRERFENR
REMFEM(—Z-NF: BT -

RAFEE AEREHERAENESS
NEABMES AR EEMARTE KR
MAREBREAME

Notes:

(i)  Estimated money values of other benefits include rent

paid, share options, insurance premium, etc.
(i) Resigned on 18 June 2019.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments during the year (2019:
HK$Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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15. R B

BEZZT 24 = A=+—HILSZ For the year ended 31 March 2020

15. DIVIDEND

ARATRFANTERNKTIRRE (= No dividend has been paid or declared by the

T hE BT o

16. BREE

Company during the year (2019: HK$Nil).

16. LOSS PER SHARE

FIREAR R EEEE IR A T E - The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is

based on the following:

—E-FF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
TERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Loss
RATREEGEE Loss attributable to owners
of the Company (23,237) (12,802)
RHHE Number of shares
ARGTEEREAREERZ Weighted average number of ordinary
TR NRE & (A ) shares for the purpose of calculating
basic loss per share (Note) 1,946,314,108 1,946,314,108
EE Note.
RARAFEMFEZEREN LB ETHELR There was no dilutive potential ordinary share for the
fi% - Company’s share option for both years.
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HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020

17. Y% - BEREE 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
ERRERRE HEIR b
Furniture and
restaurant Construction
equipment in progress Total
TEL THET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R1E Cost
RZE-\FWA—AH At 1 April 2018 15,645 — 15,645
NE Additions 65 1,965 2,030
T Write off (72) - (72)
RZE-AF=A=+—H At31 March 2019 and
k=—ZE—-NFMA—A 1 April 2019 15,638 1,965 17,603
=Y Additions 390 1,621 2,011
s Transfer 3,586 (3,586) -
] Write off (4,713) - (4,713)
RZZ-_ZF=A=+—H At 31 March 2020 14,901 - 14,901
AAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
RZZE-\FMA—-A At 1 April 2018 15,524 - 15,524
FRXH Charge for the year 47 - 47
B Write off (72) = (72)
R-ZZE—-HE=A=+—8 At 31 March 2019 and
EZZE-NFEWA—A 1 April 2019 15,499 - 15,499
FRNXH Charge for the year 770 - 770
REEE Impairment losses 4 - 4
i34 Write off (4,713) - (4,713)
RZZZFTF=A=+—H At31 March 2020 11,560 - 11,560
FHE Carrying amount
RZTZTF=A=+—H At31 March 2020 3,341 - 3,341
RZZ—NF=RA=+—H At31 March 2019 139 1,965 2,104
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17. 9% - BERRE (&)

HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

BREEZAcELBMNATKE S
BOERERFTRREREERFTERN
EREEETE TRV REEMK
ANEERISHPAEGEOFTRE
BEX REEMNERREXBE KK
R A A] R R B AT 5 B E R E
VAT MR & B 4 B8R E EL R &Y
BRUUATLL RAGFH R K - MR K AR
AeELBUREXBHERNE
HEOHEERREREE - BEEF
RREXBIABERRMBEHNTS
TRAEE -

AEBERENRSRERA - THIRE
BEEHAERAEREINR(ZFE—N
F:AER) FFEREDF RF G
BRI EREASE - R XTEBSB
HETSNFORMERE -

FEFRASE Y BEEEEH 2B
HHBRE RMITREA11.07% (=
20 FEA) -

HREERREMASIE  AEEE
HERTHENRERREE RS EL
BUZRERERE  UHEIVE -
BELEREMEREEERERBED
7l %4,000/% 7T K& 1,673,000/ 7T * £
ERNREEREEMNAIKESEE -
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The recoverable amounts of the restaurant
operations CGUs have been determined on the basis
of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method. The key assumptions for the discounted
cash flow method are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and
revenue during the period. The Group estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in
which the businesses of the CGUs operate.
Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past performance and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the directors for the next five years with the residual
period using the growth rate of 3% (2019: N/A).
This rate does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s operating restaurant activities are
11.07% (2019: N/A).

Due to the economic challenging environment and
outlook, the Group has revised its cash flow
forecasts for certain restaurant operations CGUs
and recognised impairment losses of HK$4,000 on
property, plant and equipment and HK$1,673,000
on right-of-use assets to reduce their carrying
amounts to their recoverable amounts.
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HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020

18. FHEEE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

HEWHE
Leased
properties
FA7T
HK$'000
R-ZE—NF=A=+—H At 1 April 2019 (note 3)

(K15E3) 56,476
e Depreciation (16,076)
BEBMN Lease modifications (1,050)
WA (Hat17) Impairment (note 17) (1,673)
RZZTZZEF=A=+—H At 31 March 2020 37,677

N-ZEBE-_ZTEE=A=+—H HES&
B4 78 %40,856,000 2 tH A A fEE
EERL) B %37,677,000 °

ERREEENTEERR

(BRERERA)
HEEEEERNERMNER
(BREREMBEEER)

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$40,856,000 are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$37,677,000 as at 31 March

2020.
It et 2
2020
TER
HK$’000
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets 16,076
Interest expense on lease liabilities
(included in finance costs) 4,272
Expenses relating to leases of low value assets
(included in other operating expenses) 30
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HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

HERS R B BESBHANNE

REMEFE AEEEETHEY
EHEKLE HEARHNRNF1E3F
B & E F HART 3L - AH H (8 B & E
BHEZETRGRRESE - RE
T K R S A RUGH R B R B - X
SEXAEHNZERLETEA KA &
HETTEVHIRA

XULPERREARMRERKEKHA
EEHENINER -ERAITHRER
T AEBAOREBRAEEAITED
BRER NRHEEEELE KK
EXNHERGERTIGEEEAERE
SITHEHEERE -

gEoN - BAEANEFREANREE
REHABRAEEAKE  ~&EHE
M EL A BETRITEERER
B-NBE-_T-_TF=A=+—H
LFE BEEHEBREMF-

FRBEEEEZREIGHEHFBHR
BI5E17 ©

Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out
in note 30(b).

For both years, the Group has various leased
properties for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 3 years, but
may have extension and termination options as
described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease
for an additional period after the end of the
contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include such extension options exercisable by the
Group to provide operational flexibility. The Group
assesses at lease commencement date whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option,
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or
a significant change in circumstances that is within
the control of the lessee. During the year ended 31
March 2020, there has been no such triggering
event.

Details of the impairment assessment of right-of-use
assets are disclosed in note 17.

19. 78 19. INVENTORIES
—E-FF —E-NF
2020 2019
FTET FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
B KRR Food and beverage items 1,077 1,052
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HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020

20. E5 R H B FIIR

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E-EF —T—hEF

2020 2019

FHRT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

=0y 3 &0 Trade receivables 95 596
REEEES Allowance for doubtful debts - (124)
95 472

H th & Uk F0 08 Other receivables 1,563 1,188
1,658 1,660

BEBERZURASMERAGER -

AEBFHGRTEMEFPNEENRS
60K o AEE T REBIZEHEKREE
EWIR - ESEEHZEAMRE -

BHRWHERREZHHARARR
REHEMEZ Z2BRESTWT

Most of the restaurant customers settle in cash and
credit cards.

The credit terms of the Group granted to other
customers in an average 60 days. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on
the invoice date, and net of allowance, is as
follows:

et 32 —T-NF

2020 2019

TER TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

0-60H 0 to 60 days 91 472
60H XA k& Over 60 days 4 -
95 472

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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20. EZ R HMEWRIE (&)

BEZZT 24 = A=+—HILSZ For the year ended 31 March 2020

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

R_T_TF=RA=1t—H EBH
BARBEZ BWE 5 iR 44,0008
T(ZF—NF T - BLERIK

As of 31 March 2020, trade receivables of
approximately HK$4,000 (2019: HK$Nil) were past
due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these

BRABERERDITAT ¢ trade receivables is as follows:
—E-FF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FiBTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Overdue by:
REZE=EA Up to 3 months 4 -

BHREEMZREAKREARIIER
MBLEFARM AKEALLRERE
LESRERIT A (TR o

e B S RBRIBAETTFE -

21. BROFEFAHMBEZERE 2R
BITA

Overdue balances related to a number of
independent customers that have good track record
with the Group. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

All trade receivables are denominated in HK$.

21. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI

I —T-NF
2020 2019
FEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000

BATEZREES Equity securities, at fair value
BEALETRE Listed in Hong Kong 1,219 1,338

paki=TE Analysed as:

mENE E Current assets 1,219 1,338

FABEENAFEERNEAOEAM
i o

A FES A2 E ka7 BT
B LB E o

22. B HRITERK

The fair values of listed securities are based on
current bid prices.

Equity investments at FVTOCI are denominated in
HK$.

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

AEEEBERTRITZERTIERSET
RIBRTAEBEZKERSERE
ZHEAR

2019/20 Annual Report &3k

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented
deposits pledged to banks to secure letter of
guarantee of utility deposits for some of the
Group’s restaurant operations, granted by certain
banks.
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23. ES R HMENARIE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
FHRT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 R FIE (B i) Trade payables (Note) 2,004 2,906
H {th & < 508 Other payables 2,798 1.807
EERA Reinstatement costs 958 _
= HA AR 74 FE 1< 5k 18 Long service payables 3,400 3,100
9,160 7,813

Biat - Note:

HERWE A HE RN FTERESITAT

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

receipt of goods, is as follows:

g 32 —Z-NF
2020 2019
FHExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
0-60H 0 to 60 days 1,513 2,816
60H A Over 60 days 491 90
2,004 2,906

DT ¢ Analysed as:
b g 32 —E-NF
2020 2019
FHExT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
mB A& Current liabilities 8,602 7,813
FnBAar’ Non-current liabilities 558 _
9,160 7,813

EESENREBUETHE -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

All trade payables are denominated in HKS$.
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24. HEGSE

HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

24. LEASE LIABILITIES

REAEMFH REAENRZRE
Minimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payments
—R-%F —T-NF ZB-RF C—T-NF
2020 2019 2020 2019

TR TAT TER TRT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 12,815 - 9,646 =
E_FEERF In the second to fifth years,

(BHEEREME) inclusive 35,421 - 31,210 -

48,236 = 40,856 -

W RARBEER Less: Future finance charges (7,380) - FTEANA -
MEEBRRE Present value of lease obligations 40,856 - 40,856 -
B EE12 A RS Less: Amount due for settlement

HE&%E (BRAERE  within 12 months (shown

afkE) under current liabilities) (9,646) =
1218 A & 2139 Amount due for settlement

A after 12 months 31,210 -

MEREREYIANBITFE -

ASEC NP RBEETEYERE
REEMBHRELEIE165E - LK =
T-NFHA—BRABBORE - KU
HEREMREEESFERNFE1TRE
BRREHEZHERRE -AHER
EREVBMEERNBIR 2 EDH
SR M FE3 ©

2019/20 Annual Report £ %§

All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Further details on the impact of the transition to
HKFRS 16 are set out in note 3.
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25. IR 25. SHARE CAPITAL
—E-EF —T—hEF
2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEIE ¢ Authorised:
5,000,000,000% P& E & 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares
0.10/8 L 2 & @k of HK$0.1 each 500,000 500,000
BEITRERE - Issued and fully paid:
1,946,314,108 F f% E (& 1,946,314,108 ordinary shares
0.10/8 7T 2 E % of HK$0.1 each 194,631 194,631

AEEEREANERREEARE
FELEMEE S WBBEILERM
RESREFERREHZFALR -

AEBZRBRLIIREERSHE - N
SERFLEMRNAZ(CMIBEEE
MEBRFEREEE NGB HHE
THREB - BTHREFIABELRER
AEBEREEHEREA AN - BT
i CREARE  BINFES  BO
BEEHALEEEARDER

AEBRBERRER L REZER o
ZLLERRBRARABEETH - R
REBEEBA - RO EMBEME M
& o

ANER B ME— RSN ER A AN B B AR B 3K
2 BRFEEBMAN LT ©A
BEZEL25%NRRFTFRE -

REBEFAFARIE RO BESER
BEAREARDEZORE  ZHRE
BLRTIHERZFER= XARBPTE
FHEET%NRE - -R_E-F
F=H=+—H BiBE25% (==
—NF  BiBE25%) IR BEARE
ﬁ o

1 1 8 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion
to risk. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the payment of dividends, issue new shares,
buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
shareholders equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as
total share equity divided by total asset. Total share
equity comprises share capital, retained profits and
other reserves.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for
the Group is in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of at
least 25% of the shares.

The Group receives a report from the share
registrars monthly on substantial share interests
showing the non-public float and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 March 2020, over
25% (2019: over 25%) of the shares were in public
hands.

2019/20 Annual Report £ 3k
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A SRR MY EE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) A2FHBARR K

(a) Statement of financial position of the

Company
—E-EF —E—NF
2020 2019
Bt 5 FTET FBTT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
KRB RGE 2% & Investments in subsidiaries - -
Bt B 1~ 7] 2 FE W RIR Due from subsidiaries - 24,543
- 24,543
REBEE Current assets
RITRIRE &5 Bank and cash balances 183 188
=R Current liabilities
fEFTE A Accruals 15 15
RBEEFE Net current assets 168 173
BEEFE Net assets 168 24,716
BEXR#FE Capital and reserves
A& 2 Share capital 25 194,631 194,631
fi 18 Reserves 26(b) (194,463) (169,915)
B Total equity 168 24,716

R-E-_ZTEFA-_+_HE=E
et RATHNESEARE

£ g

HEE

CHENG Hop Fai
EE

DIRECTOR

2019/20 Annual Report £ %§

BWEHK

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

EF
DIRECTOR

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 June
2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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26. AR R KR HERED ()

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) ARFRHELD

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

R EE EXftE BRERE R ER o
Share Capital Share option Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
(Bz27))  (Hz227(0)i)
(note 27(b)(i)  (note 27(b)(ii)
THEL TET TEL TET TRT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE—N\EMA—H At1April2018 88,794 113,143 1,470 (373,320) (169,913)
FEER Loss for the year - - - (1,095) (1,095)
ARG = A Share-based payments - - 1,093 - 1,093
RZE-NF At 31 March 2019 and
ZR=t-8k 1 April 2019
ZE-NEMA-H 88,794 113,143 2,563 (374,415) (169,915)
EEEHE Loss for the year - - - (24,891) (24,891)
PABR A3 7 34 % A Share-based payments - - 343 - 343
R-Z-%%F At 31 March 2020
=ZR=+—H 88,794 113,143 2,906 (399,306) (194,463)
27. #1B 27. RESERVES
(a) &= (a) Group

AEE EHESBERAS DS
HRGABERE LR ERER
REEAESEDE -

(b) REZHERAR
() REE
BREREEHENBABTRE
BENERBRTREMELN
e e REEBROERX
BRE(CAN—FREER)
HIR o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share. The
application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda.

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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27. f#1& (&)

HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

27. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) REZHEERRRZ (H&)

(i) BXHE
AEBNEARAFEHBEZHR
— NN F+AETHNEE
EREMELN - BEAXNRFHEE
ARABEITHORANAEE
B2 [ /B 2 B B R AN 1 TET B 48
B ERE -

(iii) E S #fE
EXFEHEEREBREGINE
BH A Of B 15 R M E L1
FrEINEZ 5 - BB REAAR
& B 75 ¥ 3K I TE4(b) P #L 2
SRR

28. BB AEET 3

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a
result of the group reorganisation in
October 1992. It represents the difference
between the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital issued by the Company in
exchange for the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of subsidiaries.

(iii) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in
note 4(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

ARABR_ZE—FTFHEA+TBEETZ
RERBFRIARE L ERERRZR B BRA
M RrERT 8 ([BERERT8)) - B
BEtEcBRHMEE_T_ZTFAA
NBBIE -

BREGTEZBENDERATEER
SEEZAERERMK L ERET
i AP VE 2% 5 B 3k 22 R -

(a) AEEETMKERAEREKE
ERirEszERER ([REE
Bl EEAREXEEZ (B
HITES FRTESRBIUIF
MITEE)

2019/20 Annual Report £ %§

The Company by shareholders’ resolutions passed at
the special general meeting held on 10 May 2010
adopted a share option scheme which shall be valid
and effective until 8 May 2020 (the “Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to recognise
the commitments and contributions of the following
eligible participants by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards:

(@) any employee or director (including executive
director, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”);

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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HE

28.

B8 (R)

—E-TF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) AEB{EMAKEHIMAREERE
ZEFRBR - BXER  EXEA
2 RE AB88H BT Em
R/ASRBERER RAaER
H-EFRUBTRAERNEA
ITHASESXREER (RFIE
W) 1R 2 B RAAR 1% B8 B At 8l
RER/BER Rk

(0 EF2HTRECEIKE/AE
SEFREER (RFER) L
BRI EMRAL -

R-ZE-_ZTFE=ZA=+—H ' AAQ7A
BRI & W R IT 2 B ARE
£30,000,000f% (=& — L& :
30,000,000) ' {E AR AEZ HE &7
A EA1.5% (ZF—HF:1.5%) °

R EIAI R 2 BRERD BEE
7] #8 H194,631,4100% - K AR
BRESEIBAQFDHETRA
210% @ HEEEBMGRRE - HE
BN - RIBEBIETE > FTEAER
R RITE 2 AR TR R T 7T
ZBRMEBAE - EEE ERMEMARE
AARRA AR EHITRA230% 4 1
MR e

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(b) any advisor, consultant, professional, agent,
contractor, customer, provider of goods and/or
services, business or joint-venture partner of
any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity whom the Board in its sole discretion
considers eligible for the Option Scheme on the
basis of his or her contribution to the Group or
the Invested Entity (as the case may be); and

() any person whom the Board in its sole
discretion considers has contributed or will
contribute to the Group or to the Invested
Entity (as the case may be).

At 31 March 2020, the Company had 30,000,000
(2019: 30,000,000) share options outstanding
under the Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 1.5% (2019: 1.5%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Option Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 194,631,410 shares
(approximately 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the time the Option Scheme was
established) unless further shareholders’ approval
has been obtained. The overall limit in the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Option Scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

2019/20 Annual Report %R
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28. B AEET & (&)

HE-_ZT-_TF= A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

BIEBRETS  BRAXRAIZE
MEE - FETHRAERFERER
BEZBZEMBEALKEBRE
B ARS ARG TEBYIENTE
EHE - MEARAR M EERKELE
VIIRTESHAHRESBE2EMBE
ATE—PRDERE  SEHRN12
EAHEAAEBALTERNBERZ
FrA A T E RT3 1T o Ag T 88
TZARRERG - GEtHBBARALS
BHIRMZ01% KRB MG U T
Esr & 2 % {8 % %5,000,000/% JT
Bl MRS A A RIARE 2 B # A (R
RAIZBEAEANLT AR HERZENX)
F Al — SR R o

X EREFEMARR  RIZBEETE
REMI2EAHBEASE2RERRK
RERZBRERB (BREESTER
WARITE 2 BARE) - METTEE AT
BB TETZBROES  TAE
BARRDETRNZ1% - E#E
—FROBE ER2BERE AR
SREME MREFLEEREBE
ATERHARERR -

REBREEIR D < BREABR
HAEEANEEPAER - K
BREAANRE BREZTE
BTIBLRUT=EFRz2H&SE : ()
EREHBREZA  HAThfEE:
BARRBIBRM AR LS A RERA
W FHWHE (REER (AR
EER)ARBRMDEBRXAE AR
BRATHBZKHIE  RiiDAR A KD
EE -
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Pursuant to the Option Scheme, each grant of
options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of
their respective associates, must be approved by all
independent non-executive directors of the
Company. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of
their respective associates, would result in the
shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted or to
be granted to such person in the 12-month period
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue and having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the shares, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of
options must be approved by the shareholders with
the connected persons of the Company abstaining
from voting in favour.

Subject to the aforesaid, pursuant to the Option
Scheme, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of the limit shall be subject to the
shareholders’ approval with such participant and his
associate abstaining from voting.

Options granted under the Option Scheme must be
accepted in writing within 30 days from the date of
offer. No consideration is payable on grant of
option. The exercise price of the option shares shall
at least be the highest of (i) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
offer; (ii) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of offer, which shall
be a business day; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares of the Company.
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28. B AEsT & (&)

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

REBEREFS  EESB8YAI BT
REMMERMSEBRT - RHBRKR
BTEAB2EE Btz AZA
FREKTARREERAFHER
B—BReLRETEITEEBRE -

REBEERESE  AXATRESE
BELBAZEMHEARTERR
#-EHHARAFBEETF (AR
BEREE TFHARRK - KREXH
ALk -

REBBREFTER D 2 BRE B
BHBEURR_ZE_TF=A=+—
BE-ZE-NAF=A=1t—HZHH

5
284 Rt A L
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period
£21ER Z3+E+R  ZE-tETAZtZR
Zt=H E-32RE1A
iy =1
Directors and 23 October 2017 23 October 2017 to
employees 22 QOctober 2025
(Note)
REETHR
Exercisable at the
end of the year

Pursuant to the Option Scheme, a share option may
be granted to any participant by the Board at its
absolute discretion and subject to any conditions as
it may think fit. Save for this, there is neither any
performance targets that need to be achieved by
the grantee nor any minimum period for which a
share option must be held before a share option
can be exercised.

Pursuant to the Option Scheme, a share option may
be exercised by the grantee at any time during a
period determined and notified by the Board of
Directors provided that such period shall be not
more than 10 years commencing from the date of
grant and expiring on the last business day of such
10-year period.

Details of movements in the share options granted
under the Option Scheme and the balances at 31
March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are set out below:

RZE-NE RZE-NE R-BCEE
MA-H REREXH BAE-B RER%N ZA=1-H

SRR HATE ZHE  EATE I8 HAOE

Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding

Exercise as at expire as at expired as at
price per 1 April during 1 April during 31 March
share 2018 the year 2019 the year 2020
BT
HKS
0.177 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 - 30,000,000
30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000

fiet: R=ZFT—tF+A=-+=BFELE
IR E B 2 B hEHA T8 52,906,000
AL RELBHA == —+F+
A-Z+=BAREBENERELS
H H930% ° fB IR IE L H M 5 IN30%
EBER-_Z—N\Ft+tA=+=HB-
ER40%EZBR T —NLFE+A
=R -ZEHERHBHAARAA
& U T B A0.1778 7T °

1 2 4 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

Note: The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of
the share options on 23 October 2017 was
HK$2,906,000. 30% of total number of the share
options vested immediately on the date of grant, 23
October 2017. 30% of total number of the share
options were vested on 23 October 2018 and the
remaining 40% were vested on 23 October 2019. The
closing price of the Company’s share immediately
before the date of grant was HK$0.177.
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HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

ANEEDNERB IR —SRETEE
BRAGE  HRENXE A ZE8EW
N

INHEF G R (B
MHEFHITEE
EHR R (Hfat1)
B EH
ZRRF =
KB X (A i22)

Hat

1. HEHRHERBBAELARENE
SR E) R RHETE A

2. FEEREWEEENATNESRRS
TEE

AREBREEZE T _TF=-A=1—
BIEFEABARRQE T EEREER
343,000 T ER (ZZE— N F :
1,093,000/ L) - MEHRITEBE
MERE RBEE-_E_ZTFK_ZT
—NWE=ZA=+—HLEE REHE
AE A R R B o
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The fair value was calculated using the Binomial
Option pricing model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

—T—+F

2017

Weighted average share price HK$0.177
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.177
Expected volatility (note 1) 66.99%
Expected life 8 years
Risk free rate 1.63%
Expected divided yield (note 2) 0.00%

Notes:

1.  Expected volatility was determined by calculating the

historical volatility of the Company’s share price.

2. Expected dividend yield was based on the historical

dividend yield of the Company.

The Group recognised the expenses of HK$343,000
(2019: HK$1,093,000) for the year ended 31 March
2020 in relation to share options granted by the
Company. No share options were exercised for both
years. No share options lapsed and no share options
were granted during the year ended 31 March 2020
and 2019.
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29. T EMMBE QA

—E-TF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

29. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

HE-_E-_ZEF=HA=+—Hz=F=Z
MEBARFFBIOT :

&% AR/ ERBE
Place of
incorporation/

Name operation

ERAE

Directly held:

CCC Holdings(BVI) Limited
CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited

FRRA -

Indirectly held:

CCC Investments (BVI) Limited EBRUHE/BH

CCC Investments (BVI) Limited BVI/Hong Kong

BN ERERERAA &k

City Chiu Chow Management & Hong Kong
Consultants Company Limited

AN EEERAT &R

City Chiu Chow Hong Kong
Restaurant Limited

BRNERER AR Bk

Hover City Chiu Chow Hong Kong
Restaurant Limited

GV Australia Pty Ltd -l

GV Australia Pty Ltd Australia

* EREEEREEREA A EEREEMA
BEAGBEE K FETMBREKNS K
Re ERZE . BEAR EEZKEUR S
HRE R EBEMR SR © Br1,200,000
BRARMEEBR A A EIEERIET
BEIIAANTHEEI  HRFTEER
ERRELERITBHAQBIMEFE -

ABRABE/BR
British Virgin Islands
("BVI")/Hong Kong

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2020 are as follows:

BEZRAER/
BRIRAZER
Class of shares
held/nominal
value of issued
share capital

£ 18%187,325,513% T
Ordinary
HK$187,325,513

LakIET
Ordinary US$1

LHER100% T
(BERFRETR
10,000%7) *
Ordinary HK$100
(Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000)*

LRRI00ET
(BRZRELR
2,000,003 7C) *
Ordinary HK$100

(Non-voting deferred

HK$2,000,000)*

LTRRI00BT
(ERFEELR
6,000,000 7z ) *
Ordinary HK$100

(Non-voting deferred
HK$6,000,000)*

LEMR10,0008 7
Ordinary AUD10,000

RRAFBERT
REEE LA
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Company

IEER

Principal activities

100% RERRK
Investment holding

100% REZK
Investment holding

100% RHEEERS
Provision of management

Services

100% BEER
Restaurant operations

100% feEg
Restaurant operations

100% ES:

Property development

* The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
and have no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up. These non-voting deferred
shares were indirectly held by the Company except for
1,200,000 non-voting deferred shares of Hover City
Chiu Chow Restaurant Limited which were owned by

outside parties.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

0. FEREMEBRME 30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
() METBHELENEBEZHE (a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

TERFANAEERMEZDMES The table below details changes in the Group's
BEZES  pEHESEIERS liabilities arising from financing activities,
HE) o mEETHELEZBEIIIE including both cash and non-cash changes.
/\iﬁémgifﬁxiﬁéﬁéﬁf\$ Liabilities arising from financing activities are
SBRGREeEeRERT O E AR those for which cash flows were, or future cash
BRBELECZHEREZAE - flows will be, classified in the Group’s

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

ERERER R
HBREEN ZF-NE i
RZF-NF F16E0¥E NA-B  AERAX It St 23
mA-A (Wi3)  E5IBE  (WEn) FREEE ZAREEE  HEBY ZA=t1-8
Impact on
initial
application Restated Interest Payment of
1 April of HKFRS 16 balanceat1  expenses lease Lease modi- 31 March
2019 (note3)  April2019  (note 10)  Non-cash liabilities fications 2020

TER TAR TAR TAR THET TET TER TAR
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

HEQEWiHH) - 53,852 53,852 47 (78) (16,140) (1,050) 40,856
Lease liabilities (note 24)

(b) AREECRERHEAE (b) Total cash outflow for leases
FEBReReEXRTRAREEZS Amounts included in the consolidated
HEENLATRIE: statement of cash flows for leases comprise the

following:

—EC-E®H —T-NF
2020 2019
TER FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEHEEREN Within operating cash flows 4,195 17,414
REERESREN Within financing cash flows 11,945 -
16,140 17,414

ZECHEENTIHEREAM These amounts relate to the following:
It et —T-NEF
2020 2019
TERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EfNHEE Lease rental paid 16,140 17,414
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT T4 = A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2020

31. LAEE

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

R-Z-TE=A=+—0 A%
PEEMEARREE (ZT—NEF
THT) -

32. EXREE

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$Nil).

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

REIEHRE REERRFTHNER

Capital commitments contracted for at the end of

AYEMR the reporting period but not yet incurred are as
follows:

—EC-EHE —T-NEF

2020 2019

THERT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

ME  BENMEKE Property, plant and equipment - 2,277

[

33. KREHEZH

Hi

33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

RZF-NAF=A=+—8 RET
T?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ“%ﬂiﬁﬁéﬁzfiﬂiﬁ—{fﬁf 1

At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases

IR NT - were payable as follows:
—NEF
2019
FAT
HK$'000
—F R Within one year 17,304

—FEFRF In the second to fifth years inclusive

(BREEREMF) 12,994
30,298
KERENFEASEREETHA Operating lease payments mainly represent rental

=YX EEREIEERNNEE
R KR - MO FHHEH M
E3F - BT BFaAlE -

WM SE34FT il - AL RET A IR
B EBEER N AZSTEATHE
T (=ZZF— % : 7,855000/87T) °

128

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

payable by the Group for its office, restaurants and
staff accommodation. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of one to three years and do not
include contingent rentals.

Included in the amount committed is HK$Nil (2019:
HK$7,855,000) being commitment with related
parties in relation to rental agreements as explained
in note 34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. BEALHEBRRRS

HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

RER - REBRBHNERER
ARI(EF AR ETYEESR
KSR 2 o ARFE R FI AR
Z T4 $£3%4,140,0007% JT (B2 FE
180,000 Tt & m®E) (==
— N : 4,320,000 7T) - =
T-_TFE=RA=1+—H HERK
41,080,000 TE BIEEREZ
SREMEKRZFESY (ZT— N
& : 1,080,000/ L E BIEEIER
FEHREMERKEBEFR) - ©
—E-EFE=-A=1+—HENTF
Y6 F| z FE =t 7 € A180,00078 7T
(ZE2E—NF:TBT) -

& #| Golden Toy Investments
Limited ([ Golden Toy|) & & & M
B A" MmGolden Toy Jh—EZ
BET2EHRA  ZBREREZX
mABRREEEBEE BHAL
T+ BAFLLIRBAEL T -
RRAREZHITEE I RKong
Fai AR EREIERRRIZE
wmHEEE -

RER AEERZWREEER
AR (=) AR —EEWE -
SHRFAKBRZEE A
900,000 L (Z & — L F :
900,000 7TL) c R=ZE=_TF =
A=+—H ' '#&#%%£150,000
BTEREERDMELAEZRS
R (ZZ— % : 150,000 T2
BIEEFERBYWERERZRSF) o
RZE_ZEFER-_ZFT—NF=A
=+—HB - WREEFHSER
FRE o

S ZGolden Toyz 2 &K B A
E—J o

2019/20 Annual Report £ %§

(a)

During the year, the Group leased certain
properties for its restaurant operations from
Homley Development Limited (“Homley"”).
Rentals charged by Homley during the year
amounted to HK$4,140,000 (including
HK$180,000 rental concession) (2019:
HK$4,320,000). At 31 March 2020, rental
deposit of HK$1,080,000 was included in
current property rental deposits (2019:
HK$1,080,000 included in non-current property
rental deposits). At 31 March 2020, accrued
rental payable to Homley was HK$180,000
(2019: HK$NiIl).

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) whose
entire issued share capital is beneficially owned
by a discretionary trust the objects of which
include Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak
Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are also executive
directors of the Company and beneficial
owners of Kong Fai, the Company’s ultimate
holding company.

During the year, the Group leased an unit of a
residential building from Hover City Industrial
Limited (“Hover City”). Rental charged by
Hover City during the year amounted to
HK$900,000 (2019: HK$900,000). At 31 March
2020, rental deposit of HK$150,000 was
included in current property rental deposits
(2019: HK$150,000 included in non-current
property rental deposits). At 31 March 2020
and 2019, no accrued rental was payable to
Hover City.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Golden Toy.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE

34. BEE

—E-TF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

mEgkx s (E)

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(0 RENR
~El ([E%D)HBA—2FTEY
¥ -FERFRKERz2EAE A
1,200,000 T (=& — N4 :
1,200,000 7L) - R_ZE_ZTF
“A=+—HB ®HE®RSE A
240,854 LW E BIEERE Y
¥HEZReP (ZTE—NF:
240, 854;‘%7‘55*%&3&5/%@%
%f Eked) RZT_THF
;r—FE-—NF=ZRA=+—H0" I
REEAHESENTEE -

BEDZEHZEENB AR M
=, JhGolden Toyz H#E 2 &M
B -

(d RER-
RAI([BE])ETRS - BEn
RFERNZIEE LR RB664,000
BIL (ZZF—JLF : 1,044,000
BIL) RZE_ZTFR_-F
—hWF=ZA=Z+—H #BEzxZ
fE W BR o B £33,000%8 Tt &
76,000 7T ©

BADNEHZ2EWBAT M
%33 J9Golden Toy EiE 2 &M
BAF -

CAEERAEREER (9)

AEERBEEAEAR (d)

During the year, the Group leased an office
from Sky Global Investments Limited (“Sky
Global”). Rentals charged by Sky Global during
the year amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2019:
HK$1,200,000). At 31 March 2020, rental
deposit of HK$240,854 was included in current
property rental deposits (2019: HK$240,854
was included in non-current property rental
deposits). At 31 March 2020 and 2019, no
accrued rental was payable to Sky Global.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.

During the year, the Group has entered into
transactions with Hung Yick Metal Company
Limited (“Hung Yick”). Sales to Hung Yick
during the year amounted to HK$664,000
(2019: HK$1,044,000). At 31 March 2020 and
2019, HK$33,000 and HK$76,000 were
receivable from Hung Yick respectively.

Hung Yick is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. BEALEHRERS (&)

HEZZ T4 = A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(&) RZE—NAF+A=+—H &
EEESHIIY—HERX B
S EANEBIRMESSREE
15,000,000 T2 E X - " &
BRI FIEEERE S —BIET
Frik 2 BB EM2.5%ET 8 ©
RZEBE-_FTE=A=+—H8 " K
A E%/4515,000,000% 7T (=
T—NEF: ZTERL) -

() HEHHE E=MERTEERE

() On 31 October 2019, the Group entered into a
loan agreement with Hover City for a loan
facility to the extent of HK$15,000,000 offered
to the Group by Hover City. The sum drawn
down by the Group will bear interest at 2.5%
over the best lending rate quoted by a bank in
Hong Kong. At 31 March 2020, unused facility
amounted to HK$15,000,000 (2019: HK$Nil).

(f) The remuneration of directors, which are key

AEMEFMIOT : management personnel during the period was
as follows:

g 33 —E-NEF

2020 2019

THERT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

e M HAEF Salaries and other benefits 3,785 4,050

RIREF AR Retirement benefits cost 54 54

VAR A2 2 =0 2 £+t Share-based payments 277 880

4,116 4,984

35. Lk B F

35. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

RELBAFEENHIH UNEE
HIWB T - 8T HE N D BWR S
AJ A 18 & AR SR B HYAROI ©

2019/20 Annual Report £ %§

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform to the current period’s presentation. The
new classification of the accounting items was
considered to provide a more appropriate
presentation of the state of affairs of the Group.
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Financial Summary

E RESULTS
BE=A=1t—-HLEFE
Year ended 31 March
—E-RE ZE—tF ZE-N\F ZE-NF ZE_EF
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
THERr TER TR THER TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
IoN Revenue 90,938 88,305 86,926 85,372 67,413
BREIAIEE Loss before tax (9,304) (9,008) (8,945) (12,802)  (23,237)
FEHEAX Income tax expenses - = = - -
ARTREREG 2 Loss for the year attributable to
FEEAE owners of the Company (9,304) (9,008) (8,945)  (12,802)  (23,237)
EEHAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=B=+-8
At 31 March
—E-RF ZE—+tF ZE-N\F ZE-NF —E-EF
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
THERx TAER TR THER TART
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BERE Total assets 115,318 106,848 100,271 88,103 106,168
BERE Total liabilities (7,518) (7,413) (7,984) (7,813)  (50,016)
] Total equity 107,800 99,435 92,287 80,290 56,152
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